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201 West 4" Street o PO Box 688 » Pittsburg, Kansas 66762-0688
Tel: 620-231-4100 Fax: 620-231-7327 Web: www.pittks.org

May 29, 2009

Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Commission and Citizens of Pittsburg:

This document is the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Pittsburg
(the City) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008. The report was prepared by the City's
Department of Finance and Administration. - Responsibility for both the accuracy of the
presented data and the completeness and fairness of presentation, including all disclosures,
rests with the management of the City. We believe the report, as presented, is accurate in all
material respects. We also believe it is presented in a manner designed to set forth the
financial position and resuits of operations of the City as measured by the financial activity of
its various funds. Finally, we believe that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain the maximum understanding of the City's financial affairs have been included.

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and to
ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled fo allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal
control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state awards, the City is also responsible for establishing and
maintaining an adequate internal control structure to ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic
evaluations by management and the independent auditor.

Kansas Statute Annotated 75-1122 requires an annual audit of the books of account, financial
records and transactions of all departments of the City by independent certified public
accountants. The accounting firm of Berberich Trahan & Co., P.A., was selected by the City
Commission to audit the records of the City for the year ended December 31, 2008. The
independent auditor's report is included in the financial section of this report. The independent
auditor's reports that relate specifically to the single audit requirements are inciuded in the
single audit section.



Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. MD&A complement this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with
it.

Profile of the City of Pittsburg

The City of Pittsburg, incorporated in 1880, is the largest city in southeast Kansas, with a
population of 19,536. The City is located approximately § miles west of the Missouri border
and 40 miles north of the Oklahoma border. The City of Pittsburg is empowered to levy a
property tax on both real and personal property located within its boundaries. The City's
current incorporated area is 12.91 square miles.

The City of Pittsburg has operated under the commission-manager form of government since
1949. Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in a governing commission consisting
of the mayor and 4 commission members, all elected at large and on a non-partisan basis.
The commission appoints the government’s manager, which in turn appoints the heads of the
various departments. The mayor is selected each year by the commissioners themselves and
serves a one year term.

The City provides its citizens with various municipal services commonly associated with
municipalities. These include police and fire protection, municipal court, water, wastewater and
stormwater utility services, construction and maintenance of streets and hlghways municipal
airport, municipal auditorium and parks and recreational activities.

The annua! budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. The
City Commission is required to hold a public hearing to discuss the budget prior to adoption.
The adopted annuai budget must be submitted to the State of Kansas by the end of August.
The budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety) and department (e.g., police).
Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual fund for which an
annual budget has been adopted.

The activities of the Pittsburg Public Library are presented as a component unit of the City. The
City Commission has appointive authority of the Library Board and its annual operating budget
is also subject to the approval of the City Commission.

Local economy

The local economy is varied and diverse with the City's principal employers comprised of
" education, manufacturing, medical, retaii and government. The area is also served by several
financial institutions and insurance companies. Pittsburg State University is a significant
economic presence with a current enroliment of over 7,100 students.

Compared to the prior fiscal year, retail sales tax receipts increased 4.24 percent, property tax
revenues increased by 8.54 percent and franchise tax receipts increased by 5.66 percent.
Assessed valuation increased by 1.40 percent reflecting stable property values.



The City’s largest employer and largest utility customer, Superior Industries ceased operations
in 2008. Superior's employment total was approximately 800, with 384 residing in Crawford
County. The Pittsburg micro-area (Crawford County) unemployment rate saw an increase from
4.80 percent in 2007 to 6.10 percent in 2008.

2008 highlights

Construction was completed on the new 97,000 square foot Pittsburg State University
National Guard Armory and Student Recreation Center. The estimated cost of
construction was approximately $17 million.

Oxbow Development Corporation completed construction of the Crimson Villas, an
upscale 108 unit gated apartment complex just south of the Pitisburg State University
Campus. The estimated cost of construction was approximately $15 million.

Masonite completed a restructuring to move their Canadian glass assembly operation to
the Pittsburg plant. Over $1 million was expended moving, purchasing and installing
equipment. This restructuring created 34 new jobs at the Pittsburg plant.

The City set aside $200,000 for grants towards Phase il of the downtown fagade grant
improvement program. Total Phase |l grants awarded to date are 28 with improvement
costs of approximately $300,000.

For the future

Portell & Ratzlaff, LL.C, owners of the Pittsburg Comfort Inn broke ground in 2008 on a
new Holiday Inn Express valued at $5.5 million. This facility will consist of 73 rooms and
22 suites along with meeting space to accommodate conferences and other special
events. The Holiday Inn Express will be located in the City's northern retail district next
to the Comfort Inn. Completion and occupancy is expected in 2009.

With the Crimson Villas being 100 percent filled to capacity, Oxbow Development
Corporation began construction of an additional 36 unit apartment complex in 2008
which will be located directly to the north of the existing units. These new units have an
estimated construction value of $2 million. Compiletion is scheduled for the summer of
2009.

Progressive Products, located in the Airport Industrial Park, will be expanding with an
additional 40,000 square foot being added to their current facility. Construction value is
estimated at $700,000.

The Family Resource Center will be relocating to 1600 N. Walnut in 2009. The
proposed cost for construction is $1.9 million.

1}



Major initiatives for the year

e When state funding was not awarded, it was decided to proceed with Phase |l of the
Downtown Streetscape project using local funding. This phase extended the Downtown
Streetscape three blocks north on Broadway from 9" to 11" streets.

e The City made an application for and was approved for a loan through the Kansas
Public Water Supply Loan Funds Assistance Program administered by the Kansas
Department of Health and Environment. This will provide funding for the future water
treatment plant improvements project.

Capital projects

Completed mag’or projects for the year are the Facilities Conservation Improvements Project
(FCIP), the 4™ and Rouse intersection improvements, the 4" and Walnut intersection
improvements, Atkinson Airport wildlife fence, Pinnacle Point addition paving, the hiking-biking
path connecting the Pittsburg State University campus with the City's southern retail district,
the Streetscape Phase 1 improvements on North Broadway from 2™ o 8™ streets, North
Broadway Paving from 2™ to 8" streets, downtown Europe Park and the 7" Street and Joplin
Street area storm water improvements.

The new Public Safety Center/Municipal Court facility at 201 N. Pine Street and the new Fire
Station #1 at 915 W. 4" Street are substantially completed with occupancy expected in 2009.

Major projects that are ongoing or scheduled for the future are 23" Street widening from North
Broadway to Michigan Street, Streetscape Phase 2 improvements on North Broadway from g™
to 11" Streets, Pittsburg State University sanitary sewer improvements, water system
improvements, Atkinson Road bridge improvements and various storm sewer improvements.

Long-term financial planning

The City generally uses a 5-year Capital Improvements Program (CIP) to plan for future capital
expenditures. The CIP outlines by fiscal year the details of the City’s capital projects and
equipment needs. It also specifies the funding sources for these periods. The City utilizes the
following funding sources to meet the CIP needs: bond anticipation notes, general obligation
bonds, capital leases, one fourth of the City's one half percent general sales tax revenue, grant
awards, and the annual budget for capital outlay. The City Commission has a self imposed ten
mill limit on the debt service fund annual budgeted mill levy.

Cash management

The City maintains a Treasurer's account for its pooled cash and marketable securities. This
mechanism allows the City to invest greater amounts of money at more favorable interest
rates. The City generally invests in certificates of deposits with local financial institutions. All
investments are made using a bid process.



Risk management

The risk management plan of the City involves an annual review of the City's insurance
coverage and exposures with an outside third party contracted by the City to provide such risk
management services. The City annually conducts a Health and Wellness Fair to promote
good health for the employees and their families.

The City's health insurance program is a self-insured plan. The City has contracted with Blue
Cross and Blue Shield of Kansas fo provide claims administration services. The City also
purchases stop loss coverage to limit the City's maximum exposure.

The City is a member of the Kansas Eastern Region Insurance Trust (KERIT). KERIT is a
group of cities and counties joined together to provide worker’s compensation coverage in a
cost effective manner. Emphasis is placed on safety and the reduction of cost through the
creation of a safety culture among employees, aggressive claims management, and training.

Awards and acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2007. This was the eleventh consecutive year that the City has received this
prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose
contents conform to program standards. The CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and applicable legal requirements.

We believe our current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

The preparation of the CAFR was truly a team effort and was made possible by the dedicated
efforts of the entire staff of the Department of Finance and Administration. Each member of
the staff has our sincere appreciation for the contributions they have made in the preparation
of this report and to the City as a whole. In closing, credit must also be given to the Mayor and
the City Commission for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of
professionalism in the management of the City of Pittsburg's finances. We look forward 1o the
challenges and opportunities of the future.

Respectfully submitted,

anGorden Jon B. Garrison James C. Clarkson
Interim City Manager Director of Finance & Administration Assistant Finance Director
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BERBERICH TRAHAN & €O, PA

Cereified Peblic Actountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Honorable Mayor, City Manager
and City Commissioners
City of Pittsburg, Kansas:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Pittsburg, Kansas (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and applicable provisions of the Kansas
Municipal Audit Guide. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Pittsburg, Kansas, as of December 31, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and cash
flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated May 29, 2009,
on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of ils
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.

RSk McGladrey Network

An Independently Ovmed Membes



The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 12 and the Schedule of Funding
Progress on page 69 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, statistical tables, and single audit compliance
schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and single audit
compliance schedules, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on them.

DiberectTraban ¢ (o, PA.

May 29, 2009



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Pittsburg (the City), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2008. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on
pages |-V of this report. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in whole dollars.

Financial Highlights

¢ Property tax revenues increased 10.4% compared to 2007 due to continued assessed valuation
growth and a slight mill levy increase

e Sales tax revenues were up 2.8% compared to 2007

# The general fund ending fund balance grew by 69.68% compared to 2007

« Proprietary funds unrestricted net assets increased by 8.4% compared to 2007

The Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an infroduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1} government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the City's finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
{(business-type activities).

The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public works,
sanitation and heaith, culture and recreation, industrial promation, economic development and social
welfare. The business-type activities of the City include water, wastewater and stormwater utilities.



The government-wide financial statements not only include the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also a legally separate Library for which the City is financially accountable. Financial
information presented for this component unit is reported separately from the financial information
presented for the primary government itself. The government-wide financial statements can be found
on pages 13-14 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains 10 individual governmental funds. information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the general fund, revolving loan fund, capital projects fund and the
debt service fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other 6 governmental
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-
major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. The
basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 15-25 of this report.

The City maintains two proprietary funds. These funds are presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City’s proprietary funds are used to account for its
Water/Wastewater operations and the Stormwater operation.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the water and
wastewater operation and the stormwater operation which are considered to be major funds of the City.
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 26-29 of this report.

Nofes to the Financial Statemenits

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be
found on pages 30-68 of this report.



Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the City of Pittsburg’s progress in funding its obligation
to provide post employment benefits to its employees.

The combining statements referred fo earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are
presented immediately following the notes to basic financial statements. Combining and individual
funds statements can be found on pages 70-77 of this report.

Financial Analysis of Government-wide Statements

Net Assels
City of Pittshurg's Net Assets
2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008
Governmental Governmental Business-Type Business-Type Total Primary Total Primary
Activities Activities Activities Activities Government Government
Current and
other assets $ 37,920,530 $ 27,325,863 $ 6,606,609 $ 5271819 $ 44,527,139 $ 32,597,682
Capital assets 30,989.077 46,600,104 31,424 605 34,410,529 62.413.682 81,010,633
Total assets 68,809,607 73,925,967 38,031,214 30,682 348 106.944 821 113,608,315
Long-term liahilities
outstanding 29,878,966 32,372,118 8,396,323 8,597,366 38,275,289 40,969,484
Other liabilities 11.799.199 10,420,375 417,151 1,377,802 12,216,350 11,798,277
Total liabilities 41,678,165 42 792 493 8,813,474 9,975,268 50,491,639 52 767,761
Net assefs:
Invested in capital
assets, net of
related debt 15,301,187 19,859,962 25,437,788 25,608,635 40,738,975 45,468,587
Restricted 11,219,783 11,967,446 - - 11,219,783 11,967 446
Unrestricted 710,472 (603,934} 3,779,952 4.098 445 4,490,424 3,404 511

Total net assets $.27.231.442 § 31133474 § 20217740  § 29707080  §86440182 360840554

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $60,840,554 at the close of the 2008
fiscal year. By far the largest portion of the City's net assets (74.74%) reflects its investment in capital
assets {e.g., land, buildings, machinery, equipment and infrastructure) less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding.

The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used fo liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion (18.67%) of the City's net assets represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The balance of unrestricted net assets may be used to meet the
City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.



Statement of Activities

The fable below shows the condensed revenues, expenses and the changes in net assets.

Revenles
Program revenues:

Charges for services
Operating grants and
contributicns

Capital grants and contributions
General revenues
Taxes
Cther
Total revenues

Expenses
General government
Public safety
Public works
Sanitation and heaith
Culture and recreafion
Industriai promotion
Economic development
Social welfare
interest on long term debt
Water/wastewafer utility
Stormwater ufility

Total expenses
Change in net assets before
transfers

Transfers

Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning
Prior period adjusiment
Net assets, ending

City of Pittshurg's Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Governmental  Business-Type Business-Type Total Primary Total Primary
Activities Activities Activities Activities Government Government
2067 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008
$§ 3,390,345 $ 3,255,890 § 6,354,105 5 6,463,758 $ 09,744,450 $ 9,719,648
2,800,229 3,167,635 - - 2,800,229 3,167,635
611,966 3,944,646 4,442 4,282 616,408 3,948,928
12,560,110 13,362,225 - - 12,560,110 13,362,225
1,229 571 925,499 464,788 149.828 1,394,359 1,075,327
20,592 221 24,655 895 6,523,335 5,617,868 27,115,556 31,273,763
2,018,611 4,947,762 - - 2,018,611 4,947,762
6,833,793 6,303,613 - - 6,833,793 6,303,613
3,325,255 3,580,553 - - 3,325,255 3,580,553
185,134 257,332 - - 185,134 257,332
2,325,059 2,293,785 - - 2,325,059 2,293,785
1,135,420 748,216 - - 1,135,420 748,216

4,869 3,577 - - 4,869 3,577
1,464,683 1,546,056 - - 1,464,683 1,546,058
1,213,573 1,460,128 - - 1,213,573 1,460,128

- - 4,744,357 5,234,505 4,744 357 5,234,505

- - 315,659 506,866 315,659 506,866
18,506,397 21,141,020 5,060,016 5.741,371 23,566,413 26,882 391
2,085,824 3,514,875 1,463,319 876,497 3,549,143 4,331,372
999,349 387 157 {999 349} (387,157} - -
3,085,173 3,002,032 463,970 489,340 3,549,143 4,391,372
24,058,770 27,231,442 28,753,770 29,217,740 52,81¢,540 56,449,182
89,499 - - - 89,409 -

The next section will provide a brief discussion and analysis of the City’s revenue sources and costs for

services.

Govemmental activities comprised 78.84% of the total revenues generated by the City and 78.65% of
the City's expenses. Compared to 2007, total charges for services decreased $24,802 with business-
type activities gaining $109,653 and governmental activities losing $134,455. Operating grants and
contributions increased by $367,406 compared to 2007. Most of this change was due to an increase in
public works of $524,717 for various storm damage and a decrease in culture and recreation of
Capital granis and contributions increased by
$3,332,520 compared to 2007. The majority of this increase can be attributed to the following public

$159,097 due to the completion of Europe Park.

works projects: streetscape phase 1, hiking-hiking path, and the Atkinson Airport wildlife fence.



Comparing 2008 to 2007, general government expense increased due to the FCIP energy
conservation project and higher health insurance claims expense. The decrease in public safety
expense can be attributed to a change in the accounting of health insurance fees and data processing
fees. The increase in public works expense was due to the ice and wind storm expenditures and the
Atkinson Airport expenditures due to the fact that the airport had increased aviation fuel for resale
costs.

The business-type activities, while comprising the smaller percentages of revenues and expenses of
the City, showed a gain of $876,497 in net assets, before transfers. The business-type net assets
recorded an increase of $489,340 in 2008 which is up 5.47% over the 2007 fiscal period. This is due to
the fact that the City has increased its utility rates in anticipation of future costs asscociated with the
water treatment plant improvements.

The following pie chart shows the compositicn of the 2008 primary government revenues.

SOQURCES OF REVENUE
2008

Cther

Ta "oe = e Charges for
43% Services

31%

Grants and
Contributions
23%

The components of the City’s taxes are property tax, sales tax and franchise tax. As can be seen by
the chart below, property taxes comprised the largest portion of tax revenues for 2008. Property tax
revenue increased 10.37% compared to 2007 due to increased assessed valuation and a slight
increase in the mill levy.



TAXES 2008

FRANCHISE TAX
$1,793,652

_ PROPERTY TAX
55,894,064

SALES TAX
$5,674,509

|0 PROPERTY TAX 44.1% W SALES TAX 42.5% O FRANCHISE TAX 13.4% |

The table below reflects the changes in the City’'s mill levy for the past two fiscal periods.

City of Pittsburg's Mill Levy Rates

2006 Levy 2007 Levy Increase/
to support To support (Decrease) %
2007 Budget 2008 Budget over prior year Change
General Fund 3 28.129 $ 29.958 $ 1.829 6.50 %
Debt Service Fund 10.022 9.967 (0.055) (0.55) %
Component Unit 5.512 5.555 0.043 0.78 %
Total Mill Levy -8 43,663 5 45480 5 1817 4,16 %

The City’s general fund mill rate increased due to the City’s desire to strengthen the unreserved fund
balance.



Tt

e table below reflects the changes in the City’s assessed valuation for the past two fiscal periods.

City of Pittsburg's Assessed Valuation

2006 Valuation 2007 Valuation Increase/
To support To support (Decrease) %
2007 Budget 2008 Budget over orior year Change
Real Praperty 599,804,580 $107,627,147 $ 7,822,567 7.83 %
Personal Property 17,156,062 16,127,607 (1,028.455) (5.89)%
State Assassed 6.853.365 6.231.113 (722.252) (10.39)%
Total 5123,914,007 5129.985.867 356071860 4.90%

The change in assessed valuation reflects continued strong growth and has helped the City maintain a
fairly stabie mill rate.

The following bar graph shows the composition of the 2008 primary government expenses.

Cost of City Services 2008
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The City's general government, public safety and water/wastewater utility activities are the dominant
expense categories. These three activities account for 61.33% of the total cost of City services for
2008. The total cost of services of the City's primary government for 2008 was $26,882,391. This
represents an increase of $3,315,978 compared to 2007. The portion of these services covered by the
City's taxpayers was $13,362,225. For 2008 alt cost of service categories had increased expenses
except for public safety, culture and recreation, industrial promotion, and economic development.

Analysis of the Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds

Overall the City's governmental ending fund balances decreased by a total of $9,361,322 from the prior
year. The majority of this decrease is due to the capital projects fund which declined $9,972,713. This
decrease is primarily due to the substantially completed public safety projects. The general fund had a
gain of $1,637,026 compared to 2007. This increase is due to the special one half percent sales tax
for public safety debt retirement being reserved until needed for debt payments and as mentioned
previously, the City's desire to strengthen the unreserved general fund balance. The decrease in the
debt service fund is due to the special one half percent sales tax dedicated to the retirement of the
public safety project debt being reserved in the general fund until needed for debt payments.

General fund revenues are up 20.70% and expenditures are up 16.98%. All revenue categories
registered increases in 2008 except for fines and fees and investment earnings. The decrease in fines
and fees is mainly due to lower municipal court revenues and the decrease in investment eamings is
due to lower interest rates.

Proprietary Funds

The water/wastewater utility fund and stormwater utility fund had a decrease of $1,504,671 in cash and
cash equivalents for 2008. This represents a decrease of 28.12% from fiscal year 2007; however this
decrease can be attributed to the expenditures associated with the construction of the 7™ and Joplin
Street area storm water project.

The combined utility operating income decreased by $507,577 in 2008 which reflects a decrease of
32.72%. This is mainly the result of an increase in costs of sales and services of $578,163 compared
to 2007.

-10 -



General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The legally adopted

budget for the General Fund was not amended by the City Commission during

2008. The following revenue and expenditure categories experienced significant differences between
the budgeted amount and the actual amount. The explanation of the difference is also included.

CATEGORY EXPLANATION
Taxes Taxes revenue were over budget due to an increase in sales tax collections.
Intergovernmental Intergovernmental revenues were over budget due to reimbursements from FEMA for ice

and wind storm expenditures.

Charges for services

Atkinson Airport revenues were over budget due to an increase in aviation fuel sales and
increased aviation fuel for resale costs.

Investment income

investment income revenue was under budget due to a considerable reduction in
investment rates in 2008.

Public safety

The Police department was under budget due to lower personnel costs and lower capital
outlay expenditures. Codes enforcement was under budget due to lower personnel costs
and lower contractual services expenditures.

Public works

Atkinson Airport expenditures exceeded the adopted budget due to the fact that the airport
had increased aviation fuel sales and increased aviation fuel for resale costs.

Culture & recreation

The parks and recreation department was under budget due to lower personnel costs and
lower commaodities expenditures.

Transfers out

Transfers out were under budget due to only transferring the special public safety sales tax
proceeds needed for the principal and interest expense to the debt service fund for the
public safety sales tax bonded debt.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The total amount invested in capital assets for the primary government at December 31, 2008 was
$81,010,633, net of accumulated depreciation. The capital assets increased by 29.80% from the 2007
total. The majority of the governmental activities increase can be attributed to the new public safety
center and new fire station #1. The increase in the business type activities can mainly be attributed to
the 7™ and Joplin area stormwater infrastructure improvements.

The following table categorizes the City’s capital asset balances by type of asset.

Land

Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Construction in progress

Total

City of Pittsburg's Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities

2067 2008 2007 2008
$ 3473903 $ 3,473,903 § 436,690 $ 425,690
11,307,033 25,706,232 12,756,133 12,678,994
1,954,026 2,398,280 1,202,599 1,114,020
10,277,048 14,078,533 16,529,223 19,674,169
3,977,087 543,156 499,980 506,658
430,989,077 546,600,104 531,424 605 5.24.410.529

-11 -



For additional information on capital assets, please refer to note 8 to the basic financial statements.

Debt Administration

The table below reflects the City’s outstanding long-term debt for the past two fiscal periods.

City of Pittsburg's Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Bonds and Other Debt

Governmental Businass-Type
Activities Activities
2007 2008 2007 2008
General Obligation Bonds $21,830,000 $22,580,297 $ 3,895,000 § 3,864,703
K.D.H.E. Censtruction Loans - 4,372,902 4,552,401
Custom Energy Note Payable - 1,786,708 - -
Tax Increment Bonds (TIF) 6,170,0C0 5,975,000 -
Transportation Development District Bonds TDD) 1.390,0G0 1,370,000 - -
Total $29390,000. 831712005  § 8267902

The City finances capital projects in a variety of ways: bond anticipation notes, general obligation
bonds, special revenue bonds, intergovernmental grants and loans. For 2008 the City re-affirmed a
Moody’s rating of “A3" on general obligation bond issues.

The City's outstanding general obligation bonds at December 31, 2008, totaled $26,445,000; of this
$22,580,297 is considered direct tax supported debt. This direct tax supported outstanding general
obligation balance represents a 3.44% increase from the 2007 balance. New direct tax supported
general obligation debt of $2,950,380 was issued and $2,200,083 was retired in 2008.

Kansas State Statutes limit the amount of general obligation bonds a City can issue to 30% of its
equalized tangible valuation. The current limitation for the City is $44,244,609, significantly higher than
the general obligation bond outstanding debt.

Business-type activity bonded debt decreased by 0.78% from 2007. New business-type activity debt of
$379,620 was issued and $409,917 was retired in 2008. The City’'s wastewater utility also has low
interest loans through the Kansas Department of Health and Environment (KDHE) which are repaid
100% with utility revenues. The KDHE loans are for improvements at the wastewater plant and
collection systems. During 2008 the City incurred $566,447 in new loan proceeds and retired $386,948

in loan principal.

The tax increment finance (TIF) bonds are for improvements to the northeast redevelopment district.
These bonds are to be repaid with sales tax and property tax within the TIF district only. The
transportation development district (TDD) bonds are for infrastructure improvements in the TIF district
of the City. The TDD bonds are to be repaid with a special 3/10 percent sales tax in the TIF district
only. For additional information on ouistanding debt, please refer to note 10 to the basic financial
statements.

Requests for Information
This financial report is intended fo give the reader a general overview of the City’s finances. Questions

about information contained in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to
the Director of Finance and Administration or the Assistant Director of Finance, 201 W. 4" Street,

Pittsburg, KS 66762.

-12-
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Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles
Taxes
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Other
Restricted nvestments
Leases receivable
Loans receivable
Deferred charges
Inventories
Prepaid items
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Land
Construction in progress
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Bond anticipation notes payable
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Liabilities payable from restricted cash
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one vear

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Revolving loans
Housing
Street and highway
Public safety center
Other purposes
Unrestricted

Total net assets

CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF NET A

December 31, 2008

SSETS

Component
Primary Government Unit
Governmental Business-type Pubiic
Activities Activities Total Library
$ 17,317,306 3 3,847,100 21,164,406 3 218,436
- 188,745 188,745 -
6,394,997 - 6,304,997 714,238
82,099 645,038 727,137 -
493,603 - 493,603 -
7.357 244237 251,594 118
398,748 - 398,748 -
1,468,216 - 1,468,216 -
439,855 - 439,855 -
634,949 60,141 695,050 -
59,073 281,876 340,949 -
29,660 4,682 34,342 869
3,473,903 436,690 3,910,593 215,415
943,156 306,056 1,445,812 5,051
25,700,232 12,678,994 38,385,220 2,655,760
2,398,280 1,114,020 3,512,300 2,484
14,078,533 19,674,169 33,752,702 -
73,925,967 39,682,348 113,608,315 3,812,371
2,860,006 703,579 3,563,583 31,856
2,025,210 384,790 2,410,000 -
401,771 100,788 502,559 -
5,133,388 - 5,133,388 714,238
- 188,745 188,745 -
3,013,455 703,189 3,716,644 1,957
29,358,663 7,894,177 37,252,840 7,773
42,792,493 9,575,268 52,767,761 755,824
19,859,962 25,608,635 45,468,597 2,878,710
1,582,454 - 1,582,454 -
7,261,416 - 7,261,416 -
999,607 999,607 -
221,496 - 221,496 -
1,654,806 - 1,654,806 -
247,667 - 247,667 -
(693,934) 4,098,445 3,404,511 177,837
$  31,133474 $ 29,707,080 60,840,334 $ 3,056,547

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

-13-



“BJUSWANYS |RIDURIY 2158q 0) sajou Fuduedicade 395

LPS9s0'c § FSS0F800  $ 080°L04°67  § FPLFEEEIE  § SuIpua ‘9858 13N

156°8+0°C Z81°6k¥°95 OPL L1E'6T TPF e LE Sunn3ag ‘§19sse ION

965°L TLET6E Y OPE'6aF TEHT06'C $1955% 301 W 23uRy)

6LT'C6L TS LEV YL (6ZE LET) 138°FL9'F1 SIJSUBL} pUE SHNUIASL [BI3SE [BI0],
- - (£e1°L8¢) £51°18¢ SI9JsUEL],

S16°01 LTESLOT 8T8°6¥1 661576 SBUNLIES JUSWYSIALL PAIOLSaIY)
- TEOE6LT - TEHEHL'] saxe] JSHOURL]
- 605 vL9°s - 605 VLS S9XE} 59[ES

FOL YL POO'F68°S - FOOTE8'S soxg) Kiadoig

L SANUAIAT [EIUALY
(g8g'28L) - - - LLF'99 $ 96L %01 $ 89¢°11 ) YT 0LG $ Alerqt| 21qnd
Jun jusuodiuo;)
- (081°9¥0°01) 699°97L (6¥gzLL01) RTO'RPEE  § cEoLor’c $ 8r9'61L6  § 168728997 ¢ wowiniaaod Aewd jeyog,
- 69997, 699°9ZL - 4144 - 86L€OT'9 ILEERLS sanwpor adAy-ssoulsng (B0,
- 17L€81 1ZL°e81 - - - 1857069 998°00% INBALILION
- 8¥6 THS RP6TFS - 8T'Y - ILIELL'S SOSPET'S INEMINISEAIDIEM
:8atiAlor adA)-ssouisng

- {6¥8°TLLOL) - {6FR°ZLLOT) IFIPre'E CEO'L91°E 068°55Z°E 0TO P IT SR [PIUAUNLIDAOS (210,
- (9z1'0o¥' 1) - {oz109¢" 1) - - - 9TL0St' L 199p uL133-8uo] uo I5aIMU]
- (sLz'v) - (SLTvD) - 606'815°1 78T 9S0'9FS | AEpEM [BIO0G
- (£L5°) - {(LL5%€) - - - LESTE 1usdojaAp MUOUOdE]
- {68.°¢8¢) - (68L753¢) - - LTFTOt 91Z'8FL uonowod ferysnpuy
- (I£¥'6L8' D) - (LEF6Ls™D) - FO1'¥61 061°0Zs $3L°€6T°T UOHBILI9I pUE 3TN
- {p95°8¢) - ($95°8¢) EOLG1E $96'89 0011 TELLsT 13{ea] pue UORENUES
- £6T°6THT - £6T°6TH'T 01E°128°E ELLIETT £9.°956 £65'085°¢ oM OLqn g
- {Z£9°006) - (z£9°006) - - 0F9°1 TLTTO6 IR0 - A19FES UGN
- (0ot 112°T) - (99+"117°7) £06 81907 - L86°TETT any - A333us aHgng
- {968°011°¢) - (968°0L1°T) - 8CHLE - $SE‘291°¢C sorjed - Gages ongng
- $  (98E'L9¥’t) % - $  (98cs0%'e)  § 0€L'9 3 8YiGL g 868°26¢°T § TILLEGY  § JUSLIIBACE |RISUSL)

ISAIEALIDE [EIUQIUILISADL)
TURUIISA0T Arelliag

Axelqry a0 SIATIOY SOMIANOY SUOTINQLIUO)) SuoONNALILO.) S931ANIG sasuadyyy SIBIF0L]/SH01IIUN §
qng adX [ -ssauwisngy [BIUSLIISAOL) PUE SJUBILY pur sjuR1D 10y sagierny
Iy JUDUULIAOL) ATRILIg lenden gunesadp
lizlinlulilig) sanuaagy] weidolg

51955V 12N 1 saduey)y
pue anuaady] (asuadr) 1N

§00T *1€ 19qUID2a(] PApUs Jea g
SHLILIALLDY 40 INFIWILV.LS
SVSNV ‘DANFSLLId 40 ALLD

-14-



Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance
for uncollectibles):

Taxes
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Other

Restricted investments

Leases receivable

Loans receivable

Advances to other funds

Inventories

Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Accrued payroll
Qther
Deferred revenue
Bond anticipation notes payable
Advances from other funds

Total Habiiities

Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
[nventories
Prepaid items
Advances
Revolving loan program
Unreserved, designated, reported in:
General fund

Unreserved, undesignated, reported in:

General fund

Spectal revenue funds
Capital projects fund
Debt service fund

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2008

General

Revolving
Loans

b 3,228,982

5,031,620
71,501
24,852

2,710

59,073
19,006

5,149,189

140,068
9,275

3,440

1,468,216
439,855
85,203

8,580

5 8,437,804

7,303,826

% 43,305
202,223

100,982

4,104,782

22,062
14,249
6,099
1,209,318

4,451,292

1,251,728

28,038
59,073
19,066

10,000

3,870,335

8,580
85,203
5,958,315

3,986,512

6,052,098

5 8,437,804

7,303,826
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Capital
Projects

Debt Service

Other
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

6,015,873

318,698

1,389,729

1,223,309

1,045
398,748

1,533,533

1,323
150,053
162

2,614

17,317,306

6,394,597
82,009
493,603
7,357
198,748
1,468,216
439,855
85,203
59,073
29,660

6,334,571

3,012,831

1,107,103
1,262,788
2,025,210

1,186,791

1,687,085

26,776,117

82,766

18,429

85,203

1,255,236
1,277,037
226,751
100,982
6,500,891
2,025,210
85,203

4,395,101

1,186,791

186,398

11,471,310

1,239,470

1,939,470

1,826,040

2,487

2,014

1,496,186

30,525
59,073
29,660
85,203
5,958,315

10,000

3,870,335
1,496,186
1,939,470
1,826,040

6,334,571

1,826,040

1,500,687

15,304,807

3,012,831

1,687,085

26,776,117




CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF THE GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

December 31, 2008

Total fund balance in Governmental Fund Balance Sheet

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds.

A long term liability is recorded for the unfunded portion of post employment
benefits other than pensions, while in the governmental funds liabikities,

that do not require satisfaction with current resources are not recorded.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Net assets of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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$

15,304,807

46,600,104

1,367,503

(135,167)

(32,003,773)

$

31,133,474




CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year Ended December 31, 2008

General
Revenues:
Taxes:
Property b3 4,208,669
Sales 4,567,019
Franchise 1,793,652
Licenses and permits 170,404
Intergovernmental 690,535
Charges for services 1,965,141
Fines and fees 349,695
Special assessments -
Investment earnings 140,417
Lease income -
Miscellaneous 186,604
Total revenues 14,072,196
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 4,711,903
Public safety - police 3,051,104
Public safety - fire 2,106,819
Public safety - other 867,333
Public works 1,356,386
Sanitation and health 76,008
Culture and recreation : 1,845,133
Industrial promotion -
Economic development -
Social welfare -
Debt service:
Principal -
Interest -
Bond issuance costs -
Capital outlay 179,528
Total expenditures 14,194,214
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (122,018)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 866,166
Transfers out (934,055)
Custom energy note payable proceeds 1,826,933
General obligation bonds issued -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,759,044
Net change in fund balances 1,637,026
Fund balances, beginning 2,349,486
Fund balances, ending b 3,986,512

Seec accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Other Total
Revolving Capital Governmental Governmental
Loans Projects Debt Service Funds Funds

- - 1,685,395 - 5 5,894,004
827,203 - 280,287 - 5,674,509

- - - - 1,793,652

- - - - 170,404

- 3,117,217 - 2,361,348 6,169,100

- - - - 1,965,141

- - - - 349,695

- - 34,875 - 34,875
145,495 547,919 55,2601 36,407 925,499
542,847 - - - 542,847
21,783 837,485 3,226 130,970 1,180,128
1,537,328 4,502,621 2,059,044 2,528,725 24,699,914
- 591 - - 4,712,494

- . - - 3,051,104

- 903 - - 2,107,722

- - - - 867,333

- 8,466 - 1,239,977 2,604,829

- 110,551 - 66,525 253,084

- 1,445 - - 1,840,578
1,432,577 - - - 1,432,577
- 3,577 - - 3,577

- y - 1,550,188 1,550,188

- - 2,455,309 . 2,455,309

- 187,340 1,357,898 - 1,545,238

- 91,268 - - 91,268

- 16,404,401 - 120,476 16,704,405
1,432,577 16,808,542 3,813,207 2,977,166 39,225,706
104,751 (£2,305,921) (1,754,163) (448,441) (14,525,792)

- 287,827 634,912 525,000 2,313,905
(6,748) {904,999) - (86,946) (1,926,748}

- - - - 1,826,933

- 2,950,380 - - 2,950,380
(6,748) 2,333,208 634,912 444,054 5,164,470
98,003 (9,972,713) (1,119,251} (4,387) (9,361,322)
5,954,095 11,912,183 2,945,291 1,505,074 24,666,125
6,052,098 1,939,470 1,826,040 1,500,687 3 15,304,807
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
arc different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (9,361,322)

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 15,611,027

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (44,019)

The issuance of iong-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the cument financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net
effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. (2,230,737)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds. (72,917)

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 3,902,032
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Original Variance with
and Final Final Budget -
Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 11,393,919 $ 11,842,254 $ 448,335
Intergovernmental 125,352 678,870 553,518
Licenses and permits 135,000 170,404 35,404
Charges for services 2,863,951 3,172,225 308,274
Fines and fees 402,500 349,695 (52,805)
Investment income 350,000 142,138 (207,862)
Miscellaneous 78,968 186,664 107,696
Total revenues 15,349,690 16,542,250 1,192,560
Expenditures:
General government:
General administration:
Personmel services 589,905 566,580 23,325
Contractual services 143,351 169,187 (25,836)
Commodities 16,750 24,076 (7,326)
Total general adnunistration expenditures 750,006 759,843 (9,837)
Group hospitalization:
Claims paid 1,836,457 1,850,325 6,132
Human resources:
Personnel services 130,662 130,496 166
Contractual services 24,603 29,166 (4,503)
Commoditics 6,500 6,381 119
Total human resources expenditures 161,825 166,043 {4,218)
Information systems:
Personnel services 268,010 282,850 (14,840)
Contractual services 99,636 134,039 (34,403)
Commodities services 50,000 50,661 (661)
Capital cutlay 50,354 23,558 26,796
Total information systerns expenditures $ 468,000 3 491,108 3 (23,108}
(Continued)
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
{Continued) '

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Original Variance with
and Final Final Budget -
Budgeted Actal Positive
Amounts Amounts {Negative)
Municipal court:
Personnel services $ 254,580 $ 255,434 3 (854)
Coniractual services 33,755 37,927 (4,172)
Commodities 3,000 4,599 {1,599)
Total municipal court expenditures 291,335 297,960 (6,625)
Total general government expenditures 3,527,623 3,565,279 (37,656)
Public safety:
Police department: _
Personnel services ' 2,866,625 2,800,009 66,616
Contractual services 333,366 316,646 16,720
Commodities 222,800 216,475 6,325
Capital outlay 155,350 127,576 271,774
Total police department expenditures 3,578,141 3,460,706 117,435
Fire department:
Personnel services 2,013,928 2,057,843 (43,915)
Contractual services 125,034 113,542 11,492
Commodities 86,500 81,396 5,104
Capital outlay 12,000 - 12,000
Total fire department expenditures 2,237,462 2,252,781 {15,319
Pubiic safety - other:
Codes enforcement:
Personnel services 664,686 621,954 42,732
Coniractual services 139,590 84,249 55,341
Commodities 16,363 13,221 3,642
Total codes enforcement expenditures 5 821,139 3 719,424 $ 101,715
(Continued)
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Original Variance with
and Final Final Budget -
Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts (Negative)
Animal control:
Personnel services $ 43,150 $ 41,163 1,987
Contractual services 21,924 24,335 (2,411)
Commodities 8,000 8,992 (992)
Total animal control expenditures 73,074 74,490 (1,416)
Electronics department:
Personnel services 76,160 74,301 1,859
Contractual service 19,758 17,387 2,371
Commuodities 44,500 40,809 3,691
Total electronics department expenditures 140,418 132,497 7,921
‘Total public safety - other 1,034,631 926,411 108,220
Total public safety expenditures 6,850,234 6,639,808 210,336
Public works:
Engineering department:
Personnel services 149 455 121,227 28,228
Contractual services 29,769 23,370 6,399
Commodities 13,940 11,192 2,748
Total engineering department expenditures 193,164 155,789 37,375
Atkinson Airport:
Personnel services - 173,353 187,390 (14,037}
Contractual services 61,195 56,233 4,962
Commodities 492 358 803,618 (311,260)
Total Atkinson Airport expenditures 726,906 1,047 241 (320,335)
Total public works expenditures 3 520,070 $ 1,203,030 3 (282,960)
(Continued)
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2008

QOriginal Variance with
and Final Final Budget -
Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts (Negative)
Sanitation and health:
Mt. Olive Cemetery:
Personnel services $ 64,701 $ 59,930 3 4,771
Contractual services 13,058 14,194 (1,136)
Commodities 8,750 13,432 (4,682)
Total sanitation and health expendituzes 86,509 87,556 (1,047
Culture and recreation:
Parks and recreation department:
Personnel services 634,608 616,898 17,710
Contractual services 126,780 119,821 6,959
Commodities 177,500 127,921 49,579
Capital outlay - 6,850 (6,850)
Total parks and recreation department expenditures 038,888 871,490 67,398
Aquatic center:
Personnel services 113,224 102,411 10,813
Confractual services 29,205 28,280 925
Commuodities 52,000 54,213 (2,213)
Total aquatic center expenditures 194,429 184,904 9,525
Four Oaks Complex:
Personnel services 267,014 262,837 4,177
Contractual services 62,908 65,312 (2,344)
Commodities 104,000 86,499 17,501
Capital outlay - 4,950 (4,950)
Total Four Oaks Complex expenditures $ 433,982 $ 419,598 $ 14,384

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Qriginal Variance with
and Final Final Budget -
Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts {Negative)
Memorial Auditorium and Convention Center:
Personnel services $ 247,121 b 275,562 3 (28,441)
Contractual services 139,921 161,278 (21,357
Commodities 87,000 62,709 24,231
Operating reserve 45,966 - 45,966
Total Memorial Auditorium and Convention Center 520,008 499,609 20,399
Total culture and recreation expenditures 2,087,307 1,975,601 111,706
Operating reserve 791,813 180,117 611,696
Total expenditures 14,263,556 13,651,481 612,075
Excess of revenues over expenditures 1,086,134 2,850,769 1,804,635
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in 835,455 366,166 30,711
Transfers out (3,142,264) (2,316,262) 826,002
Total other financing sources (uses) {2,306,809) (1,450,096) 856,713
Wet change in fund balances (1,220,675) 1,440,673 2,661,348
Fund balance, beginning - 1,411,725 1,411,725
Fund balance, ending $ (1,220,675 $ 2,852,398 $ 4,073,073

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements,

-25-



CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2008
Water/Wastewater Starmwater Total
Assets:
Cutrent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents b3 2,247,617 $ 1,599,483 $ 3,847,100
Restricted cash - customer deposits 188,745 - 188,745
Accounts receivable {net of allowance for uncoliectibles) 623,716 21,322 645,038
Other receivable 243,033 1,204 244,237
Inventories 281,870 - 281,876
Prepaid items 4,504 178 4,682
Total current assets 3,580,491 1,622,187 5,211,678
Noncurrent assets:
Deferred charges 30,926 20,215 60,141
Capital assets:
Land 436,690 - 436,690
Buildings and improvements 19,853,491 B 19,853,491
Machinery and equipment 3,072,642 298,078 3,370,720
Construction in progress 294,372 212,284 506,656
Infrastructure 25,097,920 4,168,912 29,266,832
Less accumulated depreciation (18,085,616) {328,244) (19,023,860)
Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 30,059,499 4,351,030 34,410,529
Total noncurrent assets 30,090,425 4,380,245 34,470,670
Total assets 33,679,516 6,002,432 30,682,348
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 348,483 197,501 546,384
Retainage payable 27410 85,166 112,576
Accrued payroll 38,127 6,492 44,619
Accrued interest payable 72,387 28,401 100,788
Accrued compensated absenees - current 55,645 8,093 63,738
Custorner deposits payable 188,745 - 188,745
Bond anticipation note payable 384,790 - 384,790
General obligation bonds - current 270,780 202,406 473,186
Construction loan payable - current 161,670 - 161,670
Other postemployment benefit obligation, current 4,085 510 4,595
Total current liabilities 1,552,122 528,969 2,081,091
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 71,485 10,397 81,882
General obligation bonds payable {net of unamortized discounts} 1,463,840 1,927,677 3,391,517
Construction loan payable 4,390,731 - 4,390,731
Other postermployment benefit abligation 26,712 3,335 30,047
Tatal noncurrent liabilities 5,952,768 1,941,409 7,894,177
Total liabilities 7,504,890 2,470,378 9,975,268
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 23,387,688 2,220,947 25,608,635
Unrestricted 2,787,338 1,311,107 4,098,445
Total net assets b 20,175,026 3 3,532,054 5 29,707,080

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.




CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year Ended December 31, 2008

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Water/Wastewater Stormwater Total
Operating revenues:
Charges for sales and services:
Water charges $ 3,018,316 - $ 3,018,316
Wastewater charges 2,523,446 - 2,523,446
Stormwater charges - 681,964 681,904
Other charges 231,409 8,623 240,032
Total operating revenues 5,773,171 690,587 6,463,758
Operating expenses:
Costs of sales and services 2,319,142 148,685 2,467,827
Administration 1,628,013 195,949 1,823,962
Depreciation 1,062,475 65,728 1,128,203
Total operating expenses 5,009,630 410,362 5,419,992
Operating income 763,541 280,225 1,043,766
Nonoperating revenues (expenscs):
Interest revenue 65,332 84,496 149,828
Interest expense (224,875) (96,504) (321,379)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (159,543) (12,008) (171,551)
Income before capital contributions
and transfers 603,998 268,217 872,215
Capital contributions 4,282 - 4282
Transfers m - 526,862 526,862
Transfers out (889,473) (24,546) (914,019)
Change in net assets (281,193) 770,533 489,340
Total net assets, beginning 26,456,219 2,761,521 29,217,740
Total net assets, ending $ 26,175,026 $ 3,532,054 § 29,707,080

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Water/Wastewater Stormwater Total
Cash flows from operating activitics:
Receipts from customers 5 5,529,735 5 691,534 $ 6,221,269
Payments to suppliers (1,957,267) (28,598) (1,985,865)
Payments to employees (1,593,323) (178,798) {1,772,121)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,979,145 484,138 2,463,283
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other funds (889,473) (24,546) (914,019
Transfers from other funds - 526,862 526,862
Interest paid on deposits (4,529) - (4,529)
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities (894,002) 502,316 (391,686)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from capitalization grant/construction loan payable 566,447 - 566,447
Payments on capitalization grant/construction loan payable {386,948) - (386,948)
Proceeds from general obligation bonds 379,620 - 379,620
Proceeds from bond anticipation notes 384,790 - 384,790
Acquisition and construction of capital assets {170,746) - (170,746}
Purchases of capital assets (1,278,388) (2.497,703) (3,776,093)
Bond issuance costs - 3,437 3,437
Principal paid on capital debt (230,000) (179,917} (409,917)
Interest paid on capital debt (207,971) (111,907} (319,878)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (943,196) (2,786,092} (3,729,288)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received 65,332 84,496 149,828
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 207,279 (1,715,142} (1,507,863)
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year 2,229,083 3,314,625 5,543,708
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year 3 2,436,362 $ 1,599,483 § 4,035,845
{Continued)
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation expense
Amortization of deferred charges

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net
Inventories
Prepaid items
Accounts payable
Acerued compensated absences
Other postemployment benefits
Customer deposits

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash consists of:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Non-cash capital financing activities:

Water/Wastewater Stormwater Total
3 763,541 3 280,225 $ 1,043,766
1,062,475 65,728 1,128,203
6,186 - 6,186
(240,245) 947 {239,298)
52,320 - 52,320
4,104 177 4,281
299,266 119,910 419,176
3,893 13,306 17,199
30,797 3,845 34,642
(3,192) - (3,192)
$ 1,979,145 3 484,138 5 2,463,283
5 2,247,617 $ 1,596,483 $ 3,847,100
188,745 - 188,745
$ 2,436,362 3 1,599,483 $ 4,035,845

Contributions of capital assets of $ 4,282 was acquired in the water/wastewater fund from other governmental funds and project

developers.

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2008

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

The City of Pittsburg, Kansas (the City) is a municipal corporation governed by an elected five-
member commission. The accompanying basic financial statements present the City (the
primary government) and its component unit, an entity for which the City is considered to be
financially accountable. The discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate
column in the governmeni-wide financial statements (see note below for description) to
emphasize that it is legally separate from the City.

Discretely Presented Component Unit, The Public Library (the Library) is operated by a Library
Board which is appointed by the City Commission. The City levies and collects a special library
tax to subsidize the Library’s operations. The Library's operating budget is subject to the
approval of the City Commission. The City must approve acquisition or disposition of real
property by the Library, but the Library owns the capital assets. Bond issuances must also be
approved by the City. The Library is presented as a governmental fund type. Separately issued
financial statements for the Library are not available.

Governmeni-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and its
component unit. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from the legally separate component unit for which the primary government is
financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements {Continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
mdividual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they arc both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. A 90-day availability period is used for revenue recognition for all governmental
funds revenues except property taxes for which a 60-day availability period is used.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and
contractual requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are,
however, essentially two types of these revenues. In one, monies must be expended for the
specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are
recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted
as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed
requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt, or earlier if the
susceptible to accrual criteria are met.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, interest associated with the current fiscal period, and
certain state and federal grants and entitlements are all considered to be susceptible to accrual
and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special
assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to
accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered fo be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. While property taxes
receivable are shown on the balance sheet as current assets of the City, they are not recognized as
revenue at year end because statutory provisions prohibit their use until the year for which they
were raised and budgeted. Instead, they are offset by deferred revenue accounts.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. This find accounts for the general operating transactions of the City including
public safety, cemetery, parks, recreation, and administration.

The revolving loans fund accounts for revolving loan proceeds involving various revenue
sources including local sales tax proceeds utilized for industrial development purposes,
revolving funds from rental rehabilitation grants, and revolving funds received from
industrial development grants. '

The capital projects fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds.

The debt service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for
principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The water/wastewater fund accounts for the operation and maintenance activities of the
City’s water and wastewater collection and treatment systems.

The stormwater fund accounts for the operation and maintenance activities of the City’s
stormwater utility.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued})

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation {Continued)

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or confradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this
same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City’s water and
wastewater function and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources arc reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating iterms.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the water/wastewater fund and the stormwater fund are charges
to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the water/wastewater fund and the
stormwater fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nenoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and Investments

In accordance with the City’s formal investment policy adopted by the governing body, the City
may form a pool that is managed by the Director of Finance. Each fund's equity in the pool is
included in "cash and cash equivalents" in the financial statements. These pooled investments
consist of operating accounts and nonnegotiable certificates of deposit that are recorded at cost
because they are not affected by market rate changes. Investment earnings, including interest
income, are allocated to the funds required to accumulate interest; other investment earnings are
allocated based on management discretion and upon their average daily equity balances. If a
fund is not required to account for its own earnings by law or regulation, the earnings are
allocated to the General Fund. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, interest earnings
allocated to the various funds were § 1,063,423.

The investments consist of money market mutual funds, which are recorded at fair value.

Cash Flows Statement

For purposes of the cash flows statement, the City considers deposits and highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. At
December 31, 2008, cash equivalents consisted of certificates of deposit included in pooled cash
described above.

Receivables and Pavables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of
interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available

for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

All trade accounts receivable are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Management
records an allowance equal to 5% of the trade accounts receivable.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Summmary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Receivables and Pavables (Continued)

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are
not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds
also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet
earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the governmental funds had no unearned revenue.
Deferred revenue is reported as follows:

General fund property taxes receivable $ 4,104,782
Revolving loans fund long-term portion of capital leases receivable 1,209,318
Debt service fund propetrty taxes receivable 1,186,791

$ 6,500,891
Property Taxes

The City's property taxes are levied each year on the assessed value of all real estate listed as of
the prior January 1, the lien date. Assessed values are established by Crawford County. The
assessed value at upon which the 2008 levy was based was approximately $ 129,985,867.

Property taxes are legally restricted for use in financing operations of the ensuing year.
Accordingly, the City defers revenue recognition until the year for which they are to be used.
Property taxes are levied on November 1. Property owners have the option of paying one-half or
the full amount of the taxes levied on or before December 20 during the year levied with the
balance to be paid on or before May 10 of the ensuing year. Property taxes become delinquent
on December 20 of each fiscal year if the taxpayer has not remitted at least one-half of the
amount due. The 2008 tax levy per $ 1,000 of assessed valuation was as follows:

General Fund §  29.958

Debt Service Fund 2.967
Component unit;

Public Library 5.555

$ 45.480
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued}

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued

Inventores and Prepaid liems

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFQ) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain paymenis fo vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted Assets

The State of Kansas requires the City to maintain customer utility deposits separate from City
assets. Interest eamed is credited back to customers as required by State statutes. Restricted
investments are set aside for debt service payments and for required debt reserves.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, infrastructure (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks and similar items) and construction in progress are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.

Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial individual cost of more than § 5,000 and an
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend the life of the asset are not capitahized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued

Capital Agsets (Continued)

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component unit, is
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives.

Buildings and improvements 20 - 50 years

Office equipment 3 - 10 years

Machinery and equipment 3 - 10 years

Water and sewer treatment plants 50 years

Water and sewer mains 50 years

Infrastructure 15 — 100 years
Compensated Absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick
pay benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the City does not have
a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service with the City. All vacation
pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.
A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of
net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of
the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as
debt service expenditures.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use
for a specific purpose.

In the general fund, $ 10,000 of the unreserved fund equity has been designated by the City
Commission and management to be used for repairs and maintenance of the field turf on the
City’s ball fields.

Restricted Net Assets

The government-wide statement of net assets reports $ 11,967,446 of restricted net assets, of
which $ 1,654,806 is restricted by enabling legislation. This enabling legislation authorized the
collection of a sales tax from which the collection of these sales taxes is to be used for the
explicit purpose of repaying the general obligation bonds for the construction of the City’s public
safety center.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Loans are extended, on a fully secured basis, to local industries under the revolving economic
development loan program. Credit is extended to citizens for special assessments levied by the
City for capital improvements. These special assessments are secured by liens on the related
properties. Unsecured credit is extended to customers for water and sewer fees and charges for
services.

Intergovernmental receivables include unsecured amounts due from federal, state and county
agencies for various grant programs.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Summary of Sienificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Pending Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements

At December 31, 2008, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) had issued
several statements not yet implemented by the City. The statements that might impact the City
are as follows:

GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets was issued
in June 2007. This statement establishes standards for when and whether intangible assets
should be considered capital assets for financial reporting purposes. It requires that all intangible
assets not specifically excluded by its scope provisions be classified as capital assets.
Accordingly, existing authoritative guidance related to the accounting and financial reporting for
capital assets should be applied to these intangible assets, as applicable. This Statement also
provides authoritative guidance that specifically addresses the nature of these assets. Such
guidance should be applied in addition to the existing authoritative guidance for capital assets.
The provisions of this statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2009.

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions was
issued in February 2009. The objective of this statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund
balance information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more
consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions. This
statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on
the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources reported in governmental funds. The provisions of this statement are effective for
periods beginning after June 15, 2010.
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Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — fotal
governmental funds and net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “Long-term liabilities,
including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds.” The details of this $ 32,003,773 difference are as follows:

Bonds payable $ (29,925,297)
Less: Deferred charge for issuance costs 634,949
Less: Issuance discount ‘ 133,024

Custom energy note payable (1,786,708)

Accrued interest payable (401,771}

Compensated absences (657,970)

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds to
arrive at net assets - governmental activities $ (32,003,773)

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and
changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of
activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital
outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.” The details of
this $ 15,611,027 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $ 17,363,592
Depreciation expense (1,752,565)
Net adjustment to increase net change in fund balances - total governmental

funds to arrive at change in net assets of governmental activities $ 15,611,027
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Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities

(Continued)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds,
leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the
effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.” The details of
this $ 2,230,737 difference are as follows:

Debt issued or incurred:

Issuance of bonds 3 (2,950,380)
fssuance of custom energy note payable (1,826,934}
Bond issuance costs 91,268
Principal repayments:
Bonds 2,415,083
- Custom energy lease 40,226

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - total governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities b {(2,230,737)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Some expenses reported in the statement of
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.” The details of this § 72,917 difference are as follows:

Compensated absences 3 (22,863)
Other post employment benefits (135,167)
Accrued interest 153,596

Amortization of issuance costs (55,367)
Amortization of bond discounts (13,116)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds to
arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities 3 (72,917)
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Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Budpetarv Information

Applicable Kansas statutes require that budgets be legally adopted for all funds unless exempted
by a specific statute. The City has legally adopted annual budgets for the general fund, the debt
service fund, the street and highway fund, the special alcohol and drug fund and the special parks
and recreation fund. Budgets were not prepared for the Section 8 and Community Development
Block Grant funds, the capital projects fund, the PHA/Presbyterian Church Housing fund and the
revolving loans fund. All budgets are prepared utilizing the modified accrual basis further
modified by the encumbrance method of accounting - that is, commitments such as purchase
orders and contracts, in addition to disbursements and accounts payable, are recorded as
expenditures.

The Statutes provide for the following sequence and timetable in adoption of budgets:

a. Preparation of proposed budget for the succeeding calendar year on or before August 1 of
each year,

b. Publication of proposed budget on or before August 5 of each year.

c. A minimum of ten days' notice of public hearing, published in a local newspaper, on or
before August 15 of each year.

d. Public hearing on or before August 15 of each year.

e. Adoption of final budget on or before August 25 of each year.

Kansas statutes permit transferring budgeted amounts from one object or purpose to another
within the same fund; however, such statutes prohibit creating expenditures in excess of the total
amount of the adopted budget of expenditures in an individual fund. City policy further limits
the level of budgetary changes not requiring City Commission approval to the department level
within an individual fund. Any change in level of appropriation beyond the departmental level in
an individual fund requires action by the City Commission. All unencumbered appropriations
lapse at the end of the year. Encumbered appropriations are not reappropriated in the ensuing
year’s budget but are carried forward until lquidated or cancelled. Kansas statutes permit
original budgets to be increased for previously unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad
valorem property taxes. The City must first publish a notice of public hearing to amend the
budget. Ten days after publication, a public hearing is held and the governing body may amend
the budget at that time. There were two budget amendments during 2008. Special Alcohol and
Drug budgeted expenditures increased from $ 77,216 to $ 119,411 and Special Parks and
Recreation budgeted expenditures increased from $ 59,766 to § 85,000.
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4 - Budgetary Basis of Accountin

The General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget
and Actual is presented in accordance with the budget basis to provide meaningful comparison of
actual results with the budget. The following reconciliation is presented to provide a correlation
between the different bases of accounting for reporting in accordance with GAAP and for
reporting on the budget basis.

General Fund

Deficit of revenue under expenditures, GAAP basis $  (122,018)
Add:
Sales tax transfers 1,382,207
Note payable proceeds 1,826,934
Change in encumbrances 40,495
Change in salaries payable 23,885
Change in interest receivable 1,721
Change in inventories 25,195
Change in prepaid items 3,147
Deduct:
Health claims (125,000)
Change in grants receivable (11,665)
Change in taxes receivable (154,132)
Excess of revenue over expenditures, budgetary basis $ 2,890,769

Budget and Actual Statements were not prepared for the revolving loans fund or the capital

projects fund because those funds are not required to have legally adopted budgets.
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(Continued)

Deposits and Investments

Deposits
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be
returned to it. Kansas statutes require that deposits be collateralized, and that collateral pledged
must have a fair market value equal to 100% of the deposits and investments, less insured
amounts, and must be assigned for the benefit of the City.

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund’s
portion of this pool is included in cash and cash equivalents on the balance sheet. At
December 31, 2008, the City’s carrying amount of deposits, including certificates of deposit, was
not exposed to custodial credit risk.

The carrying amount of deposits for the Library, a discretely presented component unit, was not
exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments

As of December 31, 2008, the City had the following investments:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
Money market mutsal funds $ 398,748 § 398,748 3 - 3 - 3

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. As a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates, the City has a formally adopted investment policy that limits investment maturities.
The policy states that the City must attempt to match investments with anticipated cash flow
requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow, the City will not invest in securities
maturing more than two years from the date of purchase.
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Deposits and Investments {Continued)

Investments (Continued)

Credit Risk

Kansas statutes authorize the City and the Library, with certain restrictions, to deposit or invest
in temporary notes, no-fund warrants, open accounts, time deposits, certificates of deposit,
repurchase agreements, U.S. Treasury Bills and Notes, the municipal investment pool, or to make
direct investments. The City’s investment policy authorizes the purchases of U.S. Treasury
securities, certificates of deposit, and temporary notes. The Library held no investments at
December 31, 2008.

The City’s investments in money market mutual funds are rated Aaa by Moody's and AAA by
Standard & Poor’s.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The City places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer.

Custodial Credit Risk-Investmenis

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral

securities that are in the possession of an outside party. At December 31, 2008, the City’s
investments were not exposed to custodial credit risk.
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Denosits and Investments (Continued)

Invesiments (Continued)

At year end, the City’s deposit and investments balances, including debt restricted accounts held
by City agents, were as follows:

Carrying Amount
Component
Unit -~ Public
City Library Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 21,164,406 3 218,436 $ 21,382,842
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 188,745 - 188,745
Restricted investments 398,748 - 398,748

$ 21,751,809 $§ 218436  § 21,970,335

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable, aggregating approximately $ 440,000 at December 31, 2008, consist of
economic development and rental rehabilitation low interest loans funded through the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development's Community Development Block Grant and
Rental Rehabilitation Programs and the City's Revolving Loan Fund.

Leases

The City has lease agreements as lessor on City property for economic development purposes.
These lease agreements qualify as capital leases and have therefore been recorded at the present

value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception date. At December 31, 2008
the lease receivable balance was § 1,468,216.
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7 - Leases (Continued)

Future minimum lease payments to be received are as follows:

2009 $ 258,898

2010 258,898

2011 165,543

2012 165,543

2013 165,543

2014 - 2018 530,108

2019 - 2023 178,500

Total minimum lease payments 1,723,033
Less: amounts representing interest (254,817)

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 1,468,216

Noncancellable operating revenue leases for City land and buildings expire in 2012, 2015, 2016
and 2018. The leases contain renewal options for periods ranging from five to ten years and
require the lessees to pay all executory costs (property taxes, maintenance and insurance). For
the year ended December 31, 2008 rental income related to these leases was $ 178,521, Future
minimum lease income 1s as follows:

2009 $ 279,773
2010 279,773
2011 266,747
2012 183,710
2013 151,310
2014 - 2018 463,569
$ 1,624,882

The asset cost of the buildings the City leases is $ 2,556,590, with accumulated depreciation of
$ 513,825 resulting in net carrying value of $ 2,042,765 at December 31, 2008.
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Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows:

Primary Government

Beginning Ending
Balance [ncreases Decreases Transfers Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 3,473,903 b3 - § - b3 - $ 3,473,503
Construction in progress 3,977,067 16,461,563 (19,495,474) - 943,156
Total capital assets not being depreciated 7,450,970 16,461,563 (19,455,474) - 4,417,059
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 21,552,083 15,071,056 - - 36,623,139
Machinery and equipment 7,090,932 934,972 (272,948) (22,468) 7,730,488
Infrastructure 19,968,329 4,395,146 - - 24,363,975
Total capitai assets being depreciated 48,611,844 20,401,174 (272,948) {22,468) 68,717,602
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (10,245,050) (671,857) - - (10,916,907)
Machinery and equipment (5,136,906) (487,047) 269,277 22,468 (5,332,208)
Infrastructure (9,691,781) (593,661) - - {10,285,442)
Total accumulated depreciation 25,073,737) (1,752,565) 269,277 22,468 {26,534,557)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 23,538,107 18,648,609 (3,671} - 42,183,045

Goavernmental activities capital assets, net $ 30,989,077 $ 35,110,172 $ (19.,499,145) b -

B 46,600,104
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Capital Assets (Continued)

Business-type activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capitai assets, net

{Continued)
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Balance
3 436,690 5 - -3 - $ - 5 436,690
499,960 3,406,106 (3,399,410} - 506,656
936,650 3,406,100 (3,399,410} - 943,346
19,528,187 325,304 - - 14,853,491
3,274,050 86,902 {12,700} 22,468 3,370,720
25,571,607 3,695,225 - - 29,266,832
48,373,844 4,107,431 {12,700} 22,408 52,491,043
(6,772,054} (402,443) - - (7,174,497)
(2,071,451} (175,481) 12,700 (22,468} (2,256,700)
(9,042,384} (550,279 - - (9,592,663)
(17,885,889} {1,128,203) 12,700 (22,468) (19,023,860)
30,487,955 2,079,228 - - 33,467,183
§ 31,424,605 § 6,385,334 $ (3,399.410) § - § 34,410,529
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Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 80,536
Public safety - police 98,685
Public safety - fire 119,251
Public safety - other 30,633
Public works 991,413
Sanitation and health 3,777
Ind ustrial promotion 36,000
Culture and recreation 392,270
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 1,752,565

Business-type activities:

Water and sewer $ 1,062,475
Stormwater 65,728
Total depreciation expense-business-type activities $ 1,128,203
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Capital Assets (Continued)

Capital asset activity for the Public Library component unit for the year ended December 31,
2008 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 215415 b - 5 - 3 215415
Construction in progress 15,126 71,527 (81,602} 5,051
Total capital assets not heing depreciated 230,541 71,527 (81,602} 220,466
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvetnents 3,326,018 81,602 - 3,407,620
Machinery and equipment 9,996 - - 9,996
Total capital assels being depreciated 3,336,014 R1,602 - 3,417,616
Less accurnulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements {678,498) {73,362) - (751,860)
Machinery and equipment {4,180} (3,332} - (7,512)
Total accumulated depreciation (682,678) {76,694} - (759,372}
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 2,653,336 4,908 N 2,658,244
Public Library capital assets, net $ 2,883,877 3 76,435 $ (81,602) § 2,878,710

Capital Projects

The City is currently working on paving projects and performing various improvements. These
projects are being funded primarily with federal grant monies and by the issuance of bonds.
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9 . (Capital Projects (Continued)

Following is a summary of costs to December 31, 2008 for capital projects compared to the
amount authorized:

Costs Amount
to Date Authorized
General government:
Four Caks improvements $ 56,287 g 77,036
Hiking/biking path 89,664 111,000
Park improvements 200,980 205,429
Auditorium projects 162,201 162,895
Streetscape project 1,219,368 2,500,000
Airport runway and wildlife fence projects 1,233,898 4,015,193
Roofing projects 163,236 125,000
Paving projects 3,017,743 4,165,081
Bridge projects 55,859 500,000
Fire department projects 591,079 616,286
Public safety center 12,421,007 15,000,000
3 19,151,322 $ 27.477,520
Business-type:
Water/wastewater 3 2,116,625 3 13,672,814
Stormwater 2,233,181 2,450,000
3 4,350,406 g 16,122,814

10 - Long-Term Debt

General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of
major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for both governmental and
business-type activities.
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Long-Term Debt (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

General obligation bonds payable at December 31, 2008 are comprised of the following issues:

Final Principal Outstanding
Interest Original Maturity Payments December 31,
Rates Issue Date During 2008 2008
General Obligation Bonds:
Governmental activities:
Series 1999-A 4.35% $ 3,220,000 2008 $ 380,000 $ -

Series 2001-B 4.00 - 4.30% 2,675,000 2011 280,000 920,000
Series 2003-A 2.16-3.30% 3,025,000 2013 285,000 1,085,000
Series 2005-A, 2.70 - 3.60% 1,460,000 2015 135,000 1,080,600
Series 2006-A 3.35-3.73% 545,000 2016 50,000 460,600
Series 2006-B 3.70 - 3.90% 1,140,000 2016 100,000 950,000
Series 2006-C 3.55-3.80% 2,000,000 2016 175,000 1,645,000
Series 2007-A 4.00% 1,285,000 2017 100,083 1,184,917
Series 2007-B 4.00% 13,000,000 2018 695,000 12,305,000
Series 2008-A 2.30 - 3.60% 2,950,380 2018 - 2,950,380
2,200,083 22,580,297

Business-type activities:
Series 2001-A 4.15 - 4.70% 4,715,000 2013 230,000 1,355,000
Series 2007-A 4.00% 2,310,000 2017 179,917 2,130,083
Series 2008-A 2.30 - 3.60% 379,620 2018 - 379,620
409,917 3,804,703
$ 2,610,000 $ 26,445,000

Call provisions at the option of the City included in the above bonds are as follows:

Series 2001-A: Callable September 1, 2011 at par plus accrued interest
Series 2001-B: Callable September 1, 2008 at par plus accrued interest
Series 2003-A: Callable September 1, 2010 at 101% of par plus accrued interest
Series 2005-A: Callabie September 1, 2013 at par plas accrued interest
Series 2006-A: Callable September 1, 2014 at par plus accrued interest
Series 2006-B: Callable September 1, 2014 at par plus accrued interest
Series 2006-C: Callable September 1, 2014 at par plus accrued interest
Series 2007-A: Callable September 1, 2015 at par plus accrued interest
Series 2007-B: Callable September 1, 2015 at par plus accrued interest
Series 2008-A: Callable September 1, 2016 at par plus accrued interest
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10 - Lone-Term Debt (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

(Continued)

The installment ranges for the general obligation bonds are the following:

General Obligation Bonds:
Governmental activities:
Series 2001-B
Series 2003-A
Series 2005-A
Series 2006-A
Series 2006-B
Series 2006-C
Series 2007-A
Series 2007-B
Series 2008-A

Business-type activities:
Series 2001-A
Series 2007-A
Series 2008-A
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Installment Range
Low High

295,000 320,000
160,000 300,000
140,000 165,000

50,000 65,000
105,000 135,000
180,060 235,600
112,594 151,895
855,000 1,800,000
239,220 345,540
240,000 300,000
202,406 273,105

30,780 44,460
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10 - Long-Term Debt (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

The future annual requirement for general obligation bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2008
are as follows:

Governmental Business-type
activities activities
Principal Interest Principal Interest
2009 $ 2,206,814 b 872,958 $ 473,186 $ 169,168
2010 2,398,755 770,442 501,245 144,216
2011 2,371,190 684,059 523,810 120,854
2012 2,150,982 595,889 554,018 96,293
2013 2,268,416 516,223 571,584 73,042
2014 -2018 11,124,140 1,291,648 1,240,860 127,409

§ 22,580,297 £ 4,731,219 $ 3,864,703 5 730,982

Construction Loan Pavable

During 2001, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Health and
Environment’s Kansas Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund. The agreement enabled the
City to borrow $ 3,800,000 to finance improvements to the wastewater system. The loan is
being repaid over twenty years at an interest rate of 3.16%. The outstanding balance of
$ 3,047,985 is shown as a liability in the water/wastewater fund. The future annual debt service
requirements for the construction loan payable as of December 31, 2008 are as follows:

Interest and

Principal Service Fee Total

2009 b 161,670 5 95,049 $ 256,719
2010 166,819 89,900 256,719
2011 172,132 84,587 256,719
2012 177,615 79,105 256,720
2013 183,272 73,448 256,720
2014-2018 1,007,723 275,873 1,283,596
2019-2023 1,178,754 104,841 1,283,595
b 3,047,985 $ 802,803 3 3,850,788
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Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Construction Loan Pavable {Continued)

During 2006, the City entered into a second loan agreement with the Kansas Department of
Health and Environment’s Kansas Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund. The agreement
enabled the City to borrow $ 4,000,000 to finance improvements to the wastewater system. The
loan will be repaid over twenty years at an interest rate of 2.67%. As of December 31, 2008, the
City has drawn $ 1,504,416 on this loan, which is shown as a liability in the waster/wastewater
fund. The debt service requirements to the maturity date will not be determinable until the final

draw has been made.

Custom Energy Note Pavable

During 2007, the City entered into an agreement for a custom energy note payable to perform
energy conservation and usage reduction improvements to the City’s facilities. The note was in
the amount of $ 1,826,934. The loan is being repaid over sixteen years at an interest rate of
4.099%.

The future annual requirements for the custom energy note payable outstanding as of
December 31, 2008 are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2009 § 92,368 § 72,300 § 164,668
2010 96,193 68,475 164,668
2011 100,177 64,492 164,669
2012 104,325 60,343 164,668
2013 108,645 56,023 164,668
2014 - 2018 614,553 208,788 823,341
2019 - 2023 ' 670,447 70,561 741,008

$ 1,786,708 3 600,982 $ 2,387,690
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

10 - Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Transportation Development District Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

In 2006, the City issued Transportation Development District Sales Tax Revenue bonds in the
amount of § 1,395,000. The proceeds were used to finance the North Broadway — Pittsburg
Town Center Project. A sales tax has been imposed on purchases made within the transportation
development district. The sales tax collected will be used to retire the bonds. The bonds are
considered a special, limited obligation of the City secured by a pledge of the sales tax revenues.
The bonds are not a general obligation of the City, nor do they go against the City’s debt limit.

The future annual requirements for Transportation Development District Sales Tax Revenue
bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2008 are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 320,000 $ 65040 $ 95,040
2010 30,000 63,600 93,600
2011 35,000 62,040 97,040
2012 40,000 60,240 100,240
2013 40,000 58,320 98,320
2014 - 2018 275,000 256,200 531,200
2019 - 2023 405,000 175,080 530,080
2024 - 2028 515,000 56,040 571,040

$ 1,370,000 $ 796,560 $ 2,166,560

The bonds are subject to optional redemption provisions starting on April 1, 2016, and on any
interest payment date thereafier, at par plus accrued interest. The term bonds maturing on
April 1, 2027 are subject to mandatory redemption and payment prior to maturity pursuant to the
requirements of a mandatory redemption schedule, at par plus accrued interest.
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Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Special Oblieation Tax Increment Revenue Bonds

In 2006, the City issued Special Obligation Tax Increment (TTF) Revenue bonds in the amount of
$ 6,310,000. The proceeds were used to finance certain redevelopment costs in connection with
the North Broadway Redevelopment - Pittsburg Town Center Project. An incremental increase
in ad valorem tax revenues and certain sales tax revenues from the redevelopment district will be
used to retire the bonds. The bonds are considered a special, limited obligation of the City,
secured by a pledge of and lien on the incremental increase in ad valorem tax and certain sales
tax revenues. The bonds are not a general obligation of the City nor do they go against the City’s

debt limit.

The future annual requirements for TIF Revenue bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2008 are
as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 195,000 $ 287,933 $ 482,933
2010 215,000 278,707 493,707
2011 235,000 268,582 503,582
2012 235,000 257,558 512,358
2013 275,000 245,632 520,632
2014 - 2018 1,730,000 1,011,280 2,741,280
2019 - 2023 2,480,000 505,435 2,985,435
2024 - 2028 590,000 18,498 608,498

$ 5,975,000 $ 2,873,625 $ 8,848,625

The bonds are subject to optional redemption provisions starting on April 1, 2016 and on any
interest payment date thereafter, at par plus accrued interest. The term bonds maturing on
April 1, 2016 and April 1, 2024 are subject to mandatory redemption and payment prior to
maturity pursuant to the requirements of a mandatory redemption schedule, at par plus accrued
interest.
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(Continued)

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Govermnental activities:
Bonds payable:

Generzl obligation bonds $ 21,830,000 § 2,950,380 § (2,200,083 $ 22,580,297 § 2,266,814

Transportation Development District

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 1,390,000 - {20,000) 1,370,000 30,000

Special Obligation Tax Increment

Revenue Bonds 6,170,000 - (195,000) 5,975,000 195,000

Less deferred amounts:

For issuance discounts (146,140) - 13,116 (133,024) -
Custom energy note payable - 1,826,934 (40,226) 1,786,708 92,368
Other postemployment benefits - 135,167 - 135,167 44275
Compensated absences 635,106 458,276 (435,412) 657,970 384,998
Governmentzal activity long-term

liabilities $ 29,878,966 5 5370,757 § (2,877,605 § 32,372,118 $ 3,013455
Business-type activities:

Bonds pavable:

General obligation bonds 3,895,000 $ 379,620 5 409,917y 5 3,804,703 § 473,186
Construction loan payable 4,372,902 566,447 (386,948) 4,552,401 161,670
Other postemployment benefits - 34,642 - 34,642 4,595
Compensated absences 128,421 95,801 (78,602) 145,620 63,738
Business-type activity long-term

liabilities $ 8,396,323 $§ 1,076,510 $ (875467) B 8,597,366 $ 703,189
Component unit activities:

Other postemployment benefits 5 - b 2,730 5 - b 9,730 8 1,957

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund.
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(Continued)

Long-Term Debt {Continued)

Conduit Debt Obligations

From time to time, the City has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance
to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial
facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and
are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment
of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by
the bond issuance.

Neither the City, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of December 31, 2008, Industrial Revenue Bonds
outstanding had an aggregate principal amount payable of approximately $ 6,799,587.

Bond Anticipation Notes Pavable

During the year, the City issued bond anticipation notes to fund various City improvements.

At December 31, 2008 the City had the following bond anticipation notes outstanding:

Beginning ' Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
Bond anticipation notes $ 4,930,000 $ 2,410,000 $ 4,930,000 $ 2,410,000
Issue Amount Interest Rate Maturity
2008A $ 2,410,000 2.15% 10/1/2009
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(Continued)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

The City participates in the Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (KPERS) and the
Kansas Police and Firemen's Retirement System (KP&F). Both are part of a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan as provided by K.S.A. 74-4901, ef seq. KPERS
and KP&F provide retirement benefits, life insurance, disability income benefits, and death
benefits. Kansas law establishes and amends benefit provisions. KPERS and KP&F issue a
publicly available financial report (only one is issued) that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. Those reports may be obtained by writing to KPERS (611
S. Kansas Avenue, Suite 100; Topeka, Kansas 66603-3803) or by calling 1-888-275-5737.

Funding Policy

K.S.A. 74-4919 establishes the KPERS member-employee contribution rate at 4% of covered
salary. K.S.A. 74-4975 establishes the KP&F member-employee contribution rate at 7% of
covered salary. The employer collects and remits member-employee contributions according to
the provisions of Section 414(h) of the Internal Revenue Code. State law provides that the
employer contribution rates be determined annually based on the results of an annual actuarial
valuation. KPERS and KP&F are funded on an actuarial reserve basis. State law sets a
limitation on annual increases in the employer contribution rates. The KPERS employer rate
established by statute from January through December 2008 was 5.93%. The City employer
contributions to KPERS for the years ending December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 were
$ 305,955, $ 272,393, and $ 223,959, respectively, equal to the statutory required contributions
for each year. The City’s KP&F uniform participating employer rate established for fiscal years
beginning in 2008 is 16.90%. Employers participating in KP&F also make contributions to
amortize the liability for past service costs, if any, which is determined separately for each
participating employer. The contributions to KP&F for the years ending December 31, 2008,
2007, and 2006 were $ 572,747, $ 551,110, and $ 506,127, respectively, equal to the statutory
required contributions for each year.
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Other Postemployment Healthcare Benefits

Description. The City offers postemployment health and life insurance to retired employees.
The benefits are provided through a single employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare
plan administered by the City. Kansas statutes provide that postemployment healthcare benefits
be extended to retired employees who have met age and/or service eligibility requirements until
the individuals become eligible for Medicare coverage at age 65. The health insurance benefit
provides the same coverage for retirees and their dependants as for active employees and their
dependants. The benefit is available for selection at retirement and is extended to retirees and
their dependants until the individuals become eligible for Medicare at 65. The City also provides
life insurance benefits to retirees. The life insurance benefits continue for lifetime. The plan
does not issue a stand-alone financial report.

Funding Policy. The City provides health insurance benefits to retirces and their dependants in
accordance with Kansas law {K.S.A. 12-5040). Kansas statutes, which may be amended by the
state legislature, establish that participating retirces may be required to contribute to the
employce group health benefits plan, including administrative costs at an amount not to exceed
125 percent of the premium cost for other similarly situated employces. The City requires
participating retirees to contribute approximately 80 percent of the blended premium cost of
active employees up to age 65 (including the employer and employee share). Retirees contribute
100 percent of their life insurance premiums.

The City appropriates funds annually for the costs associated with this retirement benefit and
provides funding for the expenditures on a pay-as-you-go basis through the General Fund. In
2008, the City contributed $ 39,859 to the plan. Plan members receiving benefits contributed
$52,105.
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Other Postemployment Healthcare Benefits (Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net QPEB Obligation. The City’s annual OPEB (other post
employment benefit) cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer
(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement
45, The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, 1s projected to cover
normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period of not to
exceed thirty years. The following table presents the components of the City’s annual OPEB
cost for the year, the amount contributed to the plan, and changes in the City’s net OPEB
obligation.

Annual required contribution $ 219,398
Interest on net OPEB obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution -

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 219,398
Contributions made (39.859)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 179,539

Net OPEB obligation, January 1, 2008 -

Net OPEB obligation, December 31, 2008 $ 179,539

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation for 2008 are as follows:

Percentage of

Fiscal Year Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
2008 h 219,398 18.17% $ 179,539
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Other Postemployment Healthcare Benefits (Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of January 1, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation
date, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $ 2,115,027, The City’s policy is fo fund the
benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$2,115,027. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$ 9,238,253 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 22.9 percent.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. The valuation
includes, for example, assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost
trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
with the past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statements, will present in time, multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan and include the types of benefits provided at the time of valuation
and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to
that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2008 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit method was applied. The
actuarial assumptions included a 3.00 percent discount rate, which reflects rate of return eamed
on the City’s general fund. The valuation assumed annual healthcare cost trend rates of six to
eight percent in the first five years and an ultimate rate of five percent after six years. The
valuation followed generally accepted actuarial methods and included tests as considered
necessary to assure the accuracy of the results. The UAAL is being amortized using the level
dollar method over a period of 30 years.
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Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; that is, damage to and destruction of
assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural
disasters; and employee health, dental and accident benefits. Commercial insurance coverage is
purchased for claims arising from such matters other than those related to employee health
benefits. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three
preceding years. There have not been significant reductions in claims from prior years.

Group Hospitalization

The City maintains a partially self-funded health insurance plan covering substantially all full-
time employees. A monthly premium is paid to an insurance company for individual and
aggregate stop-loss coverage and includes an amount for administrative costs. The maximum
liability of the City for each individual covered is $ 50,000 per plan year. Any claims paid in
excess of this amount will be reimbursed to the City by the insurance company at the end of the
plan year. The transactions of the health insurance plan are accounted for in the Group
Hospitalization department in the General Fund and are subsequently allocated to various
departments and/or funds. The rates are based on past historical costs for individual and family
coverage and expected future claims. There is no liability reported at December 31, 2008
because the City met ifs stop-loss requirements for the year ended December 31, 2008. The
claims liability is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standard Board
Statement No. 10 which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the
issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred
at the date of the financial statement and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

At December 31, 2008, the City had approximately $ 0 reserved in the General Fund for payment
of health claims due to the City meeting its stop-loss requirements. The changes in health care
claims payable for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

2008 2007
Claims payable, beginning of year $ 125,000  § 115,000
Incurred claims and change in estimate 1,399,011 1,199,227
Claim payments (1,524,011) (1,189,227)
Claims payable, end of year $ - $ 125,000
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15 - Interfund Transactions

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2008, consisted of the following:

Transfers to general fund from:

Nonmajor governmental funds $ 73,688

Water/wastewater fund 792,478
Total transfers to general fund $ 866,166
Transfers to capital projects fund from:

General fund $ 263,903

Revolving loan fund 0,748

Water/wastewater fund 17,176
Total transfers to capital projects fund _ b 287,827

Transfers to debt service fund from:

General fund $ 145,152
Capital projects fund 378,137
Nonmajor governmental funds 7,258
Water/wastewater fund 79,819
Stormwater fund 24,546
Total transfers to debt service fund $ 634,912

Transfers to nonmajor governmental funds from:
General fund 5 525,000

Transfers to stormwater fund from:
Capital projects 3 526,862

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to
debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service
payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance
various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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Interfund Transactions (Continued)

Advances to and advances from other funds are reported in the financial statements as follows:

Advances from revolving loan fund to:
Nonmajor governmental funds $ 85,203

Advances to and from other funds result from a residential incentive program the City
implemented in order to promote residential development. The City pays 50% of developer
charges from the Street and Highway fund and records a receivable in the Revolving Loan fund.
The charges are paid back over a ten year period.

Fund Balance Reserves

The governmental fund financial statements include a number of reserves that are maintained for
specific purposes. The nature and purposes of the significant reserves are:

Reserved for Encumbrances

Represents segregated monies that have been appropriated but for which expenditures
have not yet been meurred.

Reserved for Inventories

Represents inventory balances that are not available for spending.

Reserved for Prepaid Items

Represents prepaid asset balances that are not available for spending.

Reserved for Advances

Represents the asset — advance to other funds because the balance is not available for
spending (see Note 15).

Reserved for Revolving Loan Program

An account to segregatc monies that are reserved for current and future economic
development revolving loans.
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17 - Contingencies

The City is involved in various lawsuits incurred through normal operations. It is the opinion of
the City's management that the outcome of this litigation will not result in a material loss to the
City in excess of applicable insurance coverage.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

2008 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Actoarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Annual UAAL asa
Acmarial Valueof Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assels Credit {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date {a) ) (b-2) (/b ©) {(b-a)kc)
17172008 5 $ 2,115,027 $ 2115027 0.0% $ 9238253 229%
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

SPECIAL PARKS AND RECREATION - to account for park and recreation programs and activities.
Financing is through the State of Kansas's 10% tax on the sale of liquor. One-third of the liquor tax
proceeds is returned to the cities in which the tax is collected to be used to finance park and recreation
programs and activities.

SPECIAL ALCOHOL AND DRUG - to account for alcohol and drug rehabilitation programs.
Financing is through the State of Kansas's 10% tax on the sale of liquor. One-third of the liquor tax
proceeds is returned to the cities in which the tax is collected to be used to finance alcohol and drug
rehabilitation programs.

STREET AND HIGHWAY - to account for the comstruction, reconstruction, alteration, repair and
maintenance of the sireets and highways of the City and for payment of bonds and interest associated
with street and highway projects. Financing is through motor vehicle tax receipts distributed to cities
from the State of Kansas and from operating transfers from the City's General Fund.

PHA/PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH HOUSING - to account for funds which must be used to promote the
expansion of the supply of low and moderate income housing in the City and in Crawford County,
Kansas,

SECTION § - to account for federal grants under the Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) Program.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANTS - to account for federal grants under the
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) Program.



CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2008

Special Revenue

PHA/ Total
Special Special Presbyterian Community Nonmajor
Parks and Alcohol Street and Church Development  Governmental
Recreation and Drug Highway Housing Section 8 Block Grants Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 41,901 § 276,923 § 999,607 $ 215,102 $ - $ 1,533,533
Receivables (ret of allowance
for uncollectibles):
Accounis - - 1,323 - - - 1,323
Inter governmental - - 150,063 - - - 150,053
Other - - - - 162 - 162
Prepaid items - - 2,014 - - - 2,014
Total assets $ - 5 41,901 § 430,313 § 999,607 $ 215264 3 - $ 1,687,085
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 5 - 3 - § 81,084 3 - $ 1082 $ - 3 82,7606
Accrued payrolt - - 13,831 - 4,558 - 18,429
Advances from other funds - - 85,203 - - - 85,203
Total liabilities - - 180,718 - 5,080 - 186,398
Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances - - 2,487 - - - 2487
Reserved for prepaid items - - 2,014 - - - 2,014
Unreserved, undesignated - 41,901 245,064 999,607 209,584 - 1,496,186
Total find balances - 41,901 249,595 999,607 209,584 - 1,500,687
Total liabiities and fund balances $ - § 41,901 § 430,313 § 999,507 § 215204 $ - § 1,687,085
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Special Revenue

PHA/ Total
Special Special Presbyterian Community Nonmajor
Parks and Aleohol Street and Church Development  Governmental
Recreation and Drug Highway Housing Section 8 Block Grants Funds
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 73,688 § 73,688 § 695,062 3 - $ 1,422,058 $ 96,852 § 2,361,348
Investrment earnings - - - 27,548 8,859 - 36,407
Miscellaneous - 827 6,796 - 2,871 120,476 130,970
Total revenues 73,688 74,515 701,858 27,548 1,433,788 217,328 2,528,725
Expenditures:
Current:
Pyblic works - - 1,239,977 - - - 1,239,977
Sanitation and health “ 66,525 - - - - 66,525
Social welfare - - - 35,344 1,417,592 96,852 1,550,188
Capital outlay - - - - - 120,476 120,476
Total expenditures - 66,525 1,239,977 35,344 1,417,592 217,328 2,977,166
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over {under)
expenditures 73,688 7.990 (538,119) (7,796) 15,796 - (448,441)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in:
General fund - - 525,000 - - - 525,000
Transfers out:
General fund {73,688) - - - - - (73,688)
Debt service - - (7,258) - - - (7.258)
{73,088) - (7,258) - - - - (80,946)
Total other financing
sources (1ses) {73,688} - 517,742 - - - 444,054
Net change in fund balances - 7,990 (20,377) {7,796) 15,796 - (4,387)
Fund balances, beginning - 33,611 269,972 1,007,403 193,788 - 1,505,074
Fund balances, ending $ - $ 41,501 $ 249,595 $ 999,607 $ 209,584 3 - $ 1,500,687
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS
SPECIAL PARKS AND RECREATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Varlance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 59,766 $ 59,766 $ 73,0688 $ 13,922
Other financing uses:
Transfers out (59,766) (85,000) (73,688) 11,312
Net change in fund balances - (25,234) - 25,234
Fund balances, beginning - - - -
Fund balances, ending $ - $ (25234) § - § 25234

(Continued)
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS
SPECIAL ALCOHOL AND DRUG FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental § 59,766 $ 59,766 § 73,688 $ 13,922
Miscellaneous 500 500 827 327
Total revenues 60,266 60,266 74,515 14,249
Expenditures:
Personnel services - - 2,951 (2,951)
Contractual services 40,844 83,039 50,176 32,863
Commodities 36,372 36,372 13,398 22,974
Total expenditures 77.216 119411 66,525 52,886
Net change in fund balances (16,950) (59,145) 7,990 67,135
Fund balances, beginning - - 33,911 33,911
Fund balances, ending $ (16950) $ (59,145) § 41,901 $ 101,046

(Continued)
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS
STREET AND HIGHWAY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Original and Variance with
Final Final Budget -
Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 734,385 $ 716,365 $ (18,020)
Miscellancous 15,000 6,796 (8,204)
Total revenues 749,385 723,161 (26,224)
Expenditures:
Personnel services 554,319 540,941 13,378
Contractual services 409,959 369,860 40,093
Commodities 410,105 327,672 82,433
Debt service 30,000 25,862 4,138
Total expenditures 1,404,383 1,264,341 140,042
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (654,998) (541,180) 113,818
Other financing sources:
Transfers in 530,000 525,000 (5,000)
Net change in fund balances (124,998) (16,180) 108,818
Fund balances, beginning - 210,254 210,254
Fund balances, ending $§ (124998) $§ 194,074 $ 319,072
(Continued)
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Revenues:
Taxes
Special assessments
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Principal
Interest
Operating reserve
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfers in

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

Original and Varance with
Final Final Budget
Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts (Negative)
$ 1,426,457 $ 1,409,634 $  (16,823)
- 34,875 34,875
- 54,377 54,377
- 60,028 60,028
1,426,457 1,558,914 132,457
3,109,469 3,252,173 (142,704)
1,720,580 1,677,777 42,803
875,196 - 875,196
5,705,245 4,929,950 775,295
(4,278,788) (3,371,036) 907,752
3,336,279 2,572,607 (763,672)
(942,509) (798,429) 144,080
- 2,188,159 2,188,159
$ (942,509)  § 1,389,730 $ 2,332,239
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

BALANCE SHEET
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

December 31, 2008

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Taxes receivable
Interest receivable
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities
Fund balances:
Unreserved
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for prepaid items

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

=76~

218,436
714,238
118
869

933,661

7,027
14,939
714,238

736,204

187,861
8,727
869

197,457

933,661




CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

Revenues:
Taxes
Fines and fees
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Education
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

Year Ended December 31, 2008
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784,564
11,4608
10,915

104,796

911,743

882,341
5,050

887,391

24,352

173,105

197,457




STATISTICAL SECTION



Statistical Section

This part of the City’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the City’s overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 718 - 81

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
City’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 82 - 86
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting
the City’s ability to generate its most significant local revenue source, water and
wastewater revenues, as well as its property tax.

Debt Capacity 87-91
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of
the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 92-93
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City’s financial activities take place
and to help make comparisons over time with other governments.

Operating Information 94 - 96
These schedules contain information about the City’s operations and resources to
help the reader understand how the City’s financial information relates to the
services the City provides and the activities it performs.



Governmenlal activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net assels
Rusiness-type activities
invested in capitzl assets, net of ralated debt

Unresmicied

Total business-1ype aclivities net assels

Primary government
Invested in capital agsets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unresiricted

Tatal primary government aet assels

City of Pletsburg, Kansas
Net Assets by Conponent
Liast Six Fiscal Years
{acerual basis of accounting)

Flscn] Vear

803 2004 1003 006 2007 008
18,763,038 5 16,756,655 § 11,635,596 § 11,057,847 $ 15,301,187 5 19,854,962

- 7,675,955 8.969,208 2,327,570 11,219,783 11,967,446
9,052,993 (3,148,102) 2,807,659 1,671,353 710,472 (693,934}
27 816,031 $ 21,284,508 § 23,412,503 5 24,056,770 $ 27,231,442 $ 3133474
22,521,787 $ 24,239,750 § 24,548,293 $ 25,149,875 $ 25,437,788 5 2560R,6835
2,542,944 2,916,297 3,380,284 3,603,895 3,779,952 4,098,445
25,064,731 §  27,156.047 3 27,928,577 $ 28,753,710 § 29.217,740 § 25,767,080
4],284,825 § 40,996,405 % 36,183,889 3 36,207,722 § 40,738,975 § 45,468,597

- 7,675,955 8,969,208 9,327,570 11,219,783 11,967,440
11,595,937 {231,805) 6,187,983 7,215,248 4.490,424 3,404,511
52,880,762 § 48,440,555 3 51,341,080 5 52,810,540 5 56,449,182 $ 60,840,554

Mote: The City bepan to report accrual information when il implemented GASE Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003.
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City of Pittshurg, Kanzas
Changes in Net Agsets
Last Six Fiscal Years

{accrsal besis of accountiag)

Fiseal Yesr
2003 2004 2005 004§ 2007 008
Expenses
Governmenta] activities:
Gengral govemment S 1,009,561 & 1,179,618 & 1,657,462 & 1,712,504 § 2,018,611 8§ 4,947.762
Public safely - police 2,480,674 2,742,941 2,723,840 3,249,047 3,418,799 3,168,354
Public salely - fire 1,922917 2,186,552 2,301,123 2,389,005 2,389,386 2,232,987
Public safely - other 505,879 539,657 841,165 938,345 1,025,608 902,272
Public works 2,438,800 2,640,595 2,729,584 2,872,843 3,325,255 3,580,553
Sanitation and health 124,782 138,940 140,372 164,849 185,134 257,332
Culture and recrealion i, 811,890 2,025,622 2,127,719 2,267,818 2,325059 2,293,785
industrial promotion 986,716 469,424 585,270 1,160,463 1,135,420 148,216
Econemic development - 5,724,573 81,992 808,362 4,869 3,577
Social weikue 1,483,446 2,027,295 3,021,661 2,284,101 1,464,683 1,546,056
Inierest on Jong-lerm debt 257,15 106,216 383,323 658,775 1,213,573 1,460,126
Total governmenial expenses 13,031,819 19,901,435 16,593,511 18,603,242 18,506,397 21,141,020
Ruginess-type aclivities:
Water/\wastewater 4,861,635 4,912,302 4,568,704 4,871,241 4,744,357 5,234,505
Stormwater - 124,315 214,219 244 BT5 315,659 506,866
Total business-type activities expenses 4,861,633 5,036,617 4,783,623 5,116,186 5,060,016 5,741,371
Tolal primary government expenses S 17,893,494 § 24,938,052 8 21,377,134 § 23719458 & 23566411 § 26,882 39|
Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
Charges [or services:
General govemment 3 983,967 3 979,982 § 1,005,660 3 1,019,776 § 1,262,267 § 1,397,898
Public works 380,733 464,045 628,343 638,584 711,533 956,763
Industnal premotion 282,563 KrxNek) 215,038 249,229 875,887 362,427
Other aclivities 555,080 484,435 560,429 538,747 340,658 538,802
Operating grants and contributions 2,627,149 2,980,926 5,003,198 3,246,013 2,800,229 3,167,635
Capital granus and cenidbulions 138,341 22,130 797,210 1,941,305 611,966 3,944,646
Tolal governmental activities program revenuss 4,967,833 5,305,245 8,209,818 7,633,654 5,802,540 10,368,171
Business-type aclivities:
Charges for services:
Water/wastewaler 5,555,225 5,293,008 5,377,606 5,691,687 5,684,715 5,773,171
Stormwater - 513,118 620,740 643,211 669,390 630,587
Capital graws and conlributions - - 11,500 11,17¢ 4,442 4,282
Total business-lype aclivities program revenues 5,555,225 5,306,127 6,011,846 6,170,077 6,358,547 6,468,040
Tatal primary EOVEIMMEnL Progrm revenies 5 10,523,058 § 11,211,372 § 14,221,664 & 14,003,731 & 13,161,087 § 16,836,211
Mel (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activilies 5 (8.063986) § (14,596,190 § (8,383,603) §  (10,969,688) §  (ILJO35T) § (10,772,849}
Business-iype activities 693,550 869,510 1,228,223 1,253,961 1,298,531 726,669
Tatal primary governmenl net expense 5 (7,370.396) § (13,726,680) § (7,155470) § (9,715,727} § (10,405,326} & (10,046,180}
General Revenues and other Changes in Net Assels
Governmeritat activilies:
Taxes
Property laxes 5 4,134,743 % 4,514,287 § 4,647,531 § 4,924,011 % 5340410 § 5,894,064
Sales taxes 3,113,979 3,405,528 3,553,907 3,656,000 5,522,057 5,674,509
Franchise taxes 1,186,343 1,194,393 1,367 418 1,688,118 1,697,641 1,793,652
[nvesmenl carnings 220,274 151,793 420,902 763,520 1,229,571 925499
Translers 115,482 (1,201,734) 521,830 542,306 999,349 387,157
Total governmental activities §,771.328 8.064,667 10,511,688 11,613,955 14,789,030 14,674,881
Business-type aclivilies
Investmenl eammings 15,921 20,072 66,237 113,538 164,788 149,828
Translers (115,489) 1,201,734 (521,930) (542,106) (992,349) (387,157)
Total business-type activities (99,568) 1,221 306 (455 693) (428,768) (834,561) (237,329)
Tolal primary government 5 B,67E.760 § 9286473 § 10,055,995 & 11,185,187 § 13,954,469 S 14,437,552
Change in Net Assels
Governmental activilies & 707342 8 (6,531,523) § 2,127,995 % 644,267 S 3,085,173 § 3,902,032
Dusiness-lype activities 594,022 2,091,316 772,530 325,193 463,970 488,340
Total primary government 5 1,301,364 § (4,440,207} S 2,900,525 § 1,469,460 § 1,549,143 § 4,391,372

Note: The City began 1o repor{ acerual infermation when it implemented GASB Stement 34 in fiscal year 2003.
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City of Pittsburg, Kansas
Water Produced and Consumed and Wastewater Treated
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Total Direct Rate

Galiens of Galiens of Galions of Average Gallons of Water Sewer
Fiscai Water Water Water Percent Wastewater Base Usage Base Usage
Year Produced Consumed Unbilled Unbilled Treated Rate {1} Rate (2) Rate (1) Rate (2)
1969 1,041 o7 70 6.70% 2,050 § 535 Varisble b 9,43 Variable
2000 992 a56 36 3.66% 1,985 $ 590 Variable §  10.28 Variable
2001 996 965 31 3.11% 2,123 § 615 Variable $ 10,73 Variable
2002 1,051 971 B0 7.63% 2,075 § 633 Variable $ 11.05 VYariable
2003 972 948 24 2.47% 2,143 § 652 Variable $  11.39 Variable
2004 oG7 870 37 4.04% 1,474 § 6.72 Variable $ 1174 Variable
2005 N7 833 84 9.11% 1,338 § 693 Variable $ 12,10 Variable
2006 936 860 76 8.17% 875 $§ 7.14 Variable $ 1247 Variable
2007 910 852 58 6.37% 1,633 £ 7.36 Variable § 12,85 Variable
2008 926 8i4 112 12.10% 1,348 § 778 Variable $  13.58 Variable

Note: Gallons are presenied in millions.

1) Fiscal years 1999, 2000 and 2008 water and sewer base rates ar blended amounts.

2) See rate schedule.
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City of Pittsburg, Kansas
Annual Tap Sales
Last Eight Fiscal Years (1)

Water

Fiscal Meter Taps Sewer Taps

Year Sold Sold Total Taps
2001 74 24 98
2002 97 9 106
2003 80 9 89
2004 63 24 87
2005 72 23 95
2006 60 32 92
2007 56 32 88
2008 40 34 74

1) Data not available for periods 1999-2000.
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Customer

Superior Industries

Sugar Creek

Pittsburg State University
Mt Carmel Medical Center
Parkview Estates
Pitt-Plastics Inc

Cormer Stone Village
Miller's Professional Imagimg
Vinyiplex

Golden Living Center

Subtotal (10 largest)

Balance from other customers

Grand totzls

Customer

Superior Industries

Pitisburg State University
Sugar Creek

Premdor Entry Systems

Mt. Carmel Medical Center
Miller's Professional Imaging
Parkview Estates

New Horizons of Pittsburg
Stockade Brands Inc

BBD Systems Inc

Subtotal (10 largest)

Balance from other customers

Grand totals

City of Pittsburg, IKansas
Ten Largest Utility Customers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Fiscal Year 2008

Water Revenue

Sewer Revenue

Amount % Amount Y
$ 164,857 5.46% $ 100,122 1.97%
104,880 3.47% 01,438 3.62%
114,483 3.79% 48,336 1.92%
435,501 1.51% 35,763 1.42%
27,045 0.90% 20,822 0.83%
19,567 0.65% 12,072 0.48%
13,068 0.43% 10,265 0.40%
10,106 0.233% 0,896 0.39%
12,851 0.43% 6,566 0.26%
10,106 0.33% 8,566 0.34%
522,464 1731% 343,848 13.63%
2,495,852 82.69% 2,179,598 86.37%
3 3,018,316 100.00% 3 2,523,446 100.00%
Fiscal Year 1999
Water Revenue Sewer Revenue
Amount % Amount Y
A 156,958 6.17% $ 81,283 4.12%
101,327 3.99% 58,820 2.98%
53,964 2.12% 42,405 2.15%
47211 1.86% 47,722 2.42%
27,445 1.08% 22,030 1.12%
21,011 0.83% 21,489 1.09%
26,860 1.06% 11,789 0.60%
14,491 0.57% 9,621 0.49%
8,962 0.35% 15,001 0.77%
10,338 0.41% 12,305 (.62%
468,568 18.43% 322,555 16.36%
2,073,659 81.57% 1,648,557 83.64%
k) 2,542,227 100.00% 3 1,971,112 100.00%

Note: Dollar values reflected inciude base rate charges, as well as multiple

meters on various accounts.
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City of Pittsburg, Kansas
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Less Amount Percentage of
General Available in Actual Taxable Actual Taxable
Fiscal Obligation Debt Service ‘ VYalue of Yalue of Per
Year Bonds Fund Total Property Property Capita
1969 5 7,675,000 % 117,520 § 7,557,080 b 495,329,760 1.53% § 41174
2000 6,660,000 183,875 6,476,125 534,067,748 1.21% 336.54
2001 11,225,000 458,189 10,766,811 563,032,305 1.91% 559.52
2002 9,790,000 435,571 0,354,429 593,003,564 1.58% 486.12
2003 9,965,000 609,330 9,355,670 626,864,145 1.49% 480.19
2004 8,415,000 605,728 7,809,272 649,124,481 1.20% 405.82
2005 8,460,060 035,554 7,524,446 724,715,132 1.04% 391.02
2006 10,716,000 940,220 9,769,780 742,714,633 1.32% 507.71
2007 25,725,000 2,188,158 23,536,847 786,786,859 2.99% 1,223.14
2008 26,445,000 1,389,729 25,055,271 858,685,005 2.92% 1,302.05
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City of Pittsburg, Kansas

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

Governmental Unit

Debt repaid with property taxes
Crawford County

Frontenac U.S.D, 249
Pittsburg U.S.D. 250

Subtotal, overlapping debt

City direct debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

As of December 31, 2008

Outstanding

b

Debt

7,644,000
5,750,000
25,650,000
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Estimated
Share of
Estimated Direct and
Percentage Overlapping
Applicable Debt
54.30% 5 4,150,662
4.30% 247,250
79.70% 20,443,050
24,840,992
26,445,000
$ 51,285,992
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Fiscal
Year

1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
008

(1) Source
(2) Source
(3) Source
(4) Source
(5) Source
(6) Source

(7) Source

Population {1)

18,354
10,243
19,243
19,243
19,243
19,243
10,243
19,243
19,243
19,536

Personal
Income

369,025,524
406,315,945
424,308,150
437,602,792
447,303,535
463,275,225
487,425,190
487,425,190
487,425,190
494,846,880

City of Pittshurg, Kansas
Demegraphic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per Capita
Income

$ 20,106
21,115
22,050
22,744
23,245
24,075
25,330
25,330
25,330
25,330

Public Pittsburg State
School University
Enroliment (3) Enroliment (4)
2) 2,661 6,289
3] 2,600 6,418
2) 2,637 6,723
2) 2,562 6,751
(2) 2,561 6,731
{2) 2,655 6,537
{7 2,400 6,628
(N 2,680 6,859
N 2,702 7,087
N 2,640 7,127

: U.S. Bureau of the Census (excludes Pitishurg State University population)

: U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis (Crawford County, Kansas)

: Unified School District # 250 Board of Education

: Pittsburg State University Admissions

: Kansas Department of Labor

: YCACT's Sourcebook of Demographic and Buying Power for Every ZIP Code in the U.S.A."

: fedstats.gov

92-

Unemployment
Rate (5

3.7%
4.0%
4.4%
3.9%
4.9%
4.1%
4.3%
4.4%
4.8%
6.1%

Ivledtan
Age

374
358
28.1
28.1
28.1
28.1
28.1
28.1
28.1
28.1

(6)
(6
)]
]
Mm
(n
(n
n
{1
M



Emplover
Pittsburg State University
Mt, Carmel Medical Center
Pittshurg U.S.D. # 250
Wal-Mart Supercenter
Pitt Plastics
Millers Inc.
City of Pittsburg (2}
Pitsco, Inc.
Masonite
WATCO Conpanies Inc

Total

{1} Sources: Springsted and Pittsbury area chamber of commerce.

(2) includes cormponent unit.

Product
University
Hospital
Public School K-12
Retail & Grocery
Paolyethylene Bags
Professional Photo Fiuishing
City Government
Educational Systems
Steel Door Manufacturer

Railroads

City of Pittsburg, Kansas

Principail Employers (1)

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2008 1899
Estimated Pereentage Estimated I'ercentage
Number of of Tetal City Number of of Total City
Employees Rank Emplovment (3 Emplovees Rank Employment (3}
1,807 1 9.95% 1,500 1 8.22%
750 2 4.13% 573 4 3.14%
363 3 3.10% 783 2 4.13%
380 4 2.09% 380 5 2.08%
357 5 1.97% 318 [ 1.74%
238 & 1.31% 425 7 233%
216 7 1.19% 193 9 1.06%
202 ] 1% NA NA NA
215 9 I.18% 375 B 2.05%
164 10 (.90% NA NA NA
4,892 26.92% 4,517 24.74%

(3} Seurce: Kansas Department of Labor for the Pitishurg Micro-Area {Crawford County)

-93.



FOOT Jead il meRaq Jusnredap 2R1RmunIons {t

002 483X ot nrunedip Sjed ol PAUIGUOD NusanredIp QONESII [

“§661 Teak 10} Wweuntedsp ronegsunpe (pood m payses $2a40jdut 20mosss M (7

‘G661 rak 10] UL GRD Buowe 11ds 30am swaloydi (]

%000f 107 502 %0001 POT %0001 E41 %0001 ¥s1 %0001  §61 %000l §61 %000l 561 %0001 ¥61 %0001 00681
%E0L  TF %Gz  IF %10 T %EEl  BE %LFT  8F %IET  GF W%IEL ¥ %1te  SF 63 %€ i
%61 v %0T ¥ %0 T ¥ T %EL 3 %00 B %00 - %0'a = %00 = %00 -
w8l BE %08l (f %18l L %ELT 56 %TET  Sb WBUET S %IET  SF WUET  SF WLEL S WML SUEh
HIE T Y%ET [] WET El %I'E 9 %L il %I5 i %% 7l %L TL %9 £ wid ]
TdE L FFE A Wb € L %68°T € i 13 01 T %' 4 %'l T Poll' T T %50 il
Yk L L Yub'E L Wh'E L BeEE L WOE L e at %l's o1 el's of LT ol YuEE 00al
ey 8 %k'y 5 %y 3 %u'E 6 %E'L ¥l %L ¥l %e'9 I3 %Le € %Iy H %UEy 00°6
%EE ] %6°E 3 %6°E 8 %1F 3 AN 8 PARY 8 %'y H %'t 3 %L'E 8 W't oo'g
Wl6L &1 (= %66 191 %S08 LS] o¢1 %69l 051 %E9L 051 %E9l 08l %B9L 6P 6B CTERY
%ET v 3 %oT 3 %ET g [ %9T B UIT ¥ %ET £ %OT < %IT [53
%0°1 3 %01 z %0t z %01 z %01 z %0'T T %0'1 z Yo'l 4 %0'1 z Yg'e 051
4 %b'6 [i24 %86 oz %L8 2 %88 i %lB Al %8 L1 Ll cl %E'E be'et
g %FT 5 %5T 5 %BIT T UTT 3 %9T < %T H H g %O [N3
¥ %02 v %O'E ¥ %81 i %'l £ %51 £ %e'lL £ 3 3 w3l 00'E
- P . %00 . %00 . %00 - %00 - %00 - T T %l (1154
11 PR 1 k'S 1 %g'y 4 %o 6 %9y 5 %9 6 I3 A %6'T 05's
Y%s'0 1 HE0 1 A ¥ Yos0 ¥ %50 i %85’ L i) 1 e H %E0 1 Ya8'0 oot
BLE 51 51 61 AR 61 %gs I3 weol 0T A3 [it4 %gol 1T %eel 0T Y801 5407
% | ¥ D 3 ¥ %IT v %IT ¥ w%lT i wiT v %L ¥ ooy
%E'D H g1 £ Yl9 £l YoL'9 £l %L 2! %L 1 %EL vl WL ¥l 00'pL
40 4 4 T %01 z %01 z %0'1 z %0’ z %l 3 %uo'l z %E'E 134
b1H ) o805 01 %S 0% ol EC R B Lol Yol ¥ 1) oL 6F L6 Sek 05 26 958708 86 %008 L6 W66 0Evé
9 %6 T ] 6T 9 %oT B WIT ¥ HHT B TR ¢ wIT 5 wWOT T w1 [TH
1 %50 1 o 1 950 1 %50 1 %¢$'0 ! %50 1 Yiso 1 %E0 1 %g0 0ot
1 %S0 1 0 j %50 1 %50 1 Yoo 1 A 1 e 1 LAY 1 %E0 or'0
1 %r's I ¢ I Yem's 1t %LE 9 PARY 9 ve'g L %9'¢ L WL 9 %9T 08'F
v S TR 3 81 s %ril  SE %Ll L wrEl  bg versl  pg wbLl  vE %l e %081 O0FL
s e 18 YT 03 WIST 6k WEST  6r UYCT 0§ %9ST 0% %YST 0§ %EST 05 %o oels
%89 L %b's ¥l %ry £l %9 Tl L YLy b %'y 8 %ul'y B %9'E L %Ly or'g
%61 v %0T 3 %0T ¥ %5l £ B %ET B %ET £ %51 3 %u 1 H %1 067
%' T %01 z %01 T %01 T T %01 z %'t T %01 [4 %01 t %b'n -
%L H %h'E 8 %rg L %I'E . z %' € %S £ %S £ [ [ %L 00y
[EWeJ6 Sasrajauny LT i L+ R oL [T E T E=TX (T | 0I)e Haaojamy Lo 5asAoiomg W0 FRAojonry FFWE]s  sRLadig [HEJ6 E3Skapoyg [P jo Seko[dury e o S3sopduy
WAAIAY  Ju FHGUER]] WA JO QRN WAy JO Aagruny] WIS JO ABQUInN MWINIAG  J0 ARGy JEIIAL 10 Faquny) WFNA4 [0 AFqQUIn JEAdazg g s3quEny] Ju3Dag  JO Jagusny] malag  JO aaquiny]
8007 L0817 9007 $007 [ £Q0T 10917 F047 B0z 5661

s1Eax [EIsLy WA ISEY
(1) 1nzurpazdagy Aq sopdopduy mun-fgng
sesuey “3angsmig jo

soafopdurg amp-ng el
sy sdd)-smmg ) (e1oL

(b} nPUnTdSp Rl ULolS
AR S, U0eTg

AIRRL] PIBMIITE A -RIE M (0L
1uzun redsp uesrnstrUpy Agnn
TR D] IMBUIIUME Y DIBMIISEM
VunEdag IUXETL], THEMDIST A,
TUALATEdaCT SICUINUIEI 2L
TURUILBER WSINERL] VT

T[T ] S TERISE ff SSTE A,

sMlaRYY 2dA-s5UsnE
SIQLAnSY 24U A00 Joy 10T

Hnrenop 5 rsadojaasg Anrmmiery
SRR M [ER0S

TOXIEGEAD( [EMETpay

TOAEIDY PUE JAN]) [EIGT
ALAIEdS(] UMLIOHPOY [ELODS |
yuxemedaeg ¥2pduo) seQ mag
(£) nounredsg noneamoy
jwunmds UORTAIRY 1 B
GOHEeSTY puE o00m)

n=uaredsg ABSwE SANG T
IESH P SRR (S

Aaes o1pand mol
yeounredacy wodiny wosueny
Jwunmdz femgdiy 7§ wang
anszda fnnouduy
T S

Aages ongad (P19,
weunredaq unel) {edmiy
1uoun sed>cg 1e0mer) jruy
mmnmdag SmanRg
NEUG TR JURUSISIGJUT PO
nounmd any
Tusnnzedag saGd
FISES TR

TIXUUIDAGL) JETHOL [FI0 ]
1xuledacy SUSI notetioyu|
{Z) 1usumirdaq s92:n05 Y neumy
WAINIPA3F UORENSIUALDY |BIRUI)
TERTIEAOS D

SHARTY Q- ERE ALy

-04-



£SL°169°¢ SEE0LY' Y 986°96E°T L5999°E 808°LE0'Y 9057 148'S [95°€89°¢C 8Ep'018'S ISHOER'S 635°698°S
000°BELY 000'TS5°Y 000°006'F 000°To6' Y 000°796°€ 000°8%€°C 000°665°S 000°'866'F 000°951°¢ O TANS
1TL09YT 105 F60'T SETHIST TSHTIS'T TE6LLY'T £6L°199°C 8¥L6L8°T L96'RTLT SLIIILZ £9%°ZS8°T
412 88T 80E oy 65t (iT44 Bu Bl Bl el
76501 656 915’01 LO8TI El EU Bl Bl el B
9F9'6T 06L°6T 07P'8T £L¥'RT £0L'vZ By Bl BU BU Bl
£0V°ZTT ¥06°60T7 8p8 181 FRO'R 80°9¢1 00€'67 1 {6yt S9T'sel 688°151 GETSKI
i0'S 687°¢ 16F'S FLOY £L6°E 6£T°9 101°6 TET'RI 791 FEIZT
¥09 91L 118 £6L 079 97t BU B el B
g5zl (491 [£2°1 SEE'L FS1°1 oLl Bl Bl BU e
[£1 ozl i8l acl {391 9te Bl Bl Bl Eu
866C 91%°¢ £28'7 610°¢ 6Z5°E £8%°C 6SE°T 8ET el Bl
LI 91¥'1 88 or1’1 L58'1 £61°C £60°C 6TF'1 Bl Bl
LLT] 886 0gs 6r1°1 €L01 286 6b1°1 861 LEF e
0LE"] 8T9°1 690°1- 05t 969°1 LLEY 0661 608°1 ¥l S15°1
49" L9 108 tls €8¢ OLE it 333 lLE o0ov

8007 LOOZ 9007 007 00T £007 ot 1007 T 6661

SIEIX |BISLF VAL ISEB]
weigosduonaeny Aq saoisnpuy supeiadQ
sesuwy ‘Bangsnid yo 41D

‘sjustntedap A SHOUB A 1S90IN0G

DI E[tEABUN BIED SUESUE BU :2ON

{sue|[ed) wauneoy afemas Aep selony
IAVEMIISEM

(suo[ed) uondinnsiaod Ajep jead

{suoyed) uvopduunstoos A[ep sFeraay
I

{SH12AS} IUNLIOIEPNE [BELIOWS[A

(3[08 jo SpunoI) 2SINO3 Jjon)

(aouepusye) Isjuas oneaby
UOHEALID] PUE SHIB]

(pros suoped) pody

{(1eydse jo suoy) FuivelINSai 19218
sj10m onqnd 12410y

S|[Bo 12410

s|[ea Aouadisuag

S[[B2 a1t
S1L3

SUOUBIOLA DUJBI]

SuonE{0IA Burjieg

515918 FEOISA
201i2d

paronpao2 suopdadsul Fuip[ing

pansst sipnrad mpping
JUANILIAACT {BISUNY

TIET501, /0000,

Q52



-stusunedap AJID SHOLIE A 1$RIINOSG

-J|qR[I2ARIN BIED SOESUIL BU :3JON

061 ¢ el 3 EU BU Bu el 1] BU BU (ss[iuT) $19.495 101G
. 13 EMAULI0LG

GOOOP0'ET  OGOTDO0T0Z  000°000°0Z  DOO'GCO'0Z  000°000°0Z  000°000°0T  000°000°0T  000°000°0C  000°000°0T  000°000°0T {suoj[e8) Atoeden Ajlep Jusuneasy,

121 121 971 U Bl EU EU BU BU EU (soqu) s12mas L1EpES
IR MOISEM

000°06L°¢ 000°06L°¢ 000°05L°¢ 000°05L°€E 000°0SLE 000°0SL'E 000°0SLE 000°08L°E 000°0sLE 000°0SLE {(suo({e3} Anoedes a8ri01g

[Se:1] S5O Cot BU By BU BU el BU B (S3]tu} SULBWL 19YE M,
T IS38 M

Iy Iy Iy € ¢ ¢ ¢ € € ¢ SI21USD AMUNLII))

8 8 ] 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 S1IN0D SIUUS T,

6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 Spley [{eg)0s/[eqased

I I [ I 1 1 1 I 1 1 O8I0 Jj00)

z z z z z z r4 T T 4 sjood Suunumg

0 o1 6 6 6 6 6 6 8 8 syred ogng
UoNe2132] pUe SyIe

2 8¢ 6¢ 6¢ 68 6¢ 6€ 6¢ 8¢ g€ s|eudlg Jyger],

960°¢ S 4 80I°T 701°C 680°C [A:(1)4 £90°T 9861 986°1 986°1 sydpeang

S'Ivk SIwl 17 ¥l $¥1 cpl SPI 74! 741 ¥Tl (so11) ;200G

sjrom sngnd Ia10)
SUOYRIS 21
SN 05Rg
Suonelg
sanod

[aa}
o
[an]
Laad
Lan
(28]
)
Laal
™

WIeI501g/001ouny

o
&
=
[

|

=

L00T 9607 S00T 00 £007 00 100 [T 66

[

o
(2]
b=ay
—

5I¥a ) |BISIy Ud | }SE)
weaforguongauny Lq sonsnels Jessy (epdu)y
sesuey] ‘mqsyig Jo 1D

06~



SINGLE AUDIT SECTION



CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA
Grantor/Program Title Number Expenditures
Office of National Drug Control Policy:
Passed through Kansas Bureau of Investigation:
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area 7.999 $ 54,843
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Section & Housing Cluster:
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 1,417,992
Passed through Kansas Honsing Resources Corporation:
Emergency Shelter Grant 14.231 29,071
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 67,780
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 1,514,843
U.8. Department of Transportation:
Airport Improverient Program 20.106 1,258,409
Passed through Kansas Department of Transp ortation:
Special Traffic Enforcement Program Grant 20.600 943
National Highway Transportation Safety Administration Discretionary
Safety Grants 20.614 1,512
Total U,S. Department of Transportation 1,260,864
Department of Homeland Security-Federal Emergency Management Agency:
Assistance to Firefighters Grant 97.044 903
Passed through Kansas Highway Patrol:
Fire Department Training Grant 97.067 20,618
Passed through Kansas Department of Emergency Management:
Public Assistance Grant 97.036 477,417
Total Department of Homeland Security 408,038
Environmental Protection Agency:
Brownfields Assessment and Cleanup Cooperative Agreements 66.818 115,703
Total expenditures of federal awards $ 3,445,191

See accompanying notes to schedule of
expenditures of federal awards.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

December 31, 2008

General

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activity of all federal
awards of the City of Pittsburg, Kansas. The City’s reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the
City's basic financial statements. All federal awards passed through other government agencies
are included on the schedule.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented using the modified
accrual basis of accounting which is described in Note 1 to the City's basic financial statements.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Section I — Summary of Independent Auditors’ Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses identified:

Significant deficiencies identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses:

Noncompliance material to financial statements:

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified:

Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses:

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance
with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133:

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number

20.106
97.036

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs:

-99.

Unquaiified

None
See significant deficiency

2008-1

Nomne

None

None reported

Unqualified

None

Name of Federal Program

Airport Improvement Program
Public Assistance Grant

$ 300,000



CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
{Continued)

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee: Yes
Section II — Financial Statement Findings

Sienificant Deficiency — 2008-1

Criteria — An organization's internal accounting control structure should provide for the separation of
certain accounting duties or functions.

Condition — There is a lack of segregation of duties with the Director of Finance and Administration and
the Assistant Director of Finance currently having the ability to access, create and modify accounting
modules and reports which includes the Director of Finance and Administration having access to the
payroll system and also the signature authority on the City’s checks and the Assistant Director of
Finance having access to cash.

Cause — There is a limited number of employees to perform the financial duties of the City.

Effect — A lack of segregation of duties within certain transaction cycles, including payroll, leaves the
City exposed to the risk of potential misstatement due to either error or fraud.

Recommendation - The City should review ways to segregate the functions and operations of the City
that are controlled by the Director of Finance and Administration and the Assistant Director of Finance.

Management s Response/Corrective Action Plan (Unaudited) — The City will work towards segregating
duties within the Department of Finance and Administration.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Significant Deficiency — 2007-1

Criteria — An organization's internal accounting control structure should provide for the separation of
certain accounting duties or functions.

Condition — There is a lack of segregation of duties with the Director of Finance and Administration and
the Assistant Director of Finance currently having the ability to access, create and modify accounting
modules and reports which includes the Director of Finance and Administration having access to the
payroll system and also the signature authority on the City’s checks and the Assistant Dircctor of
Finance having access to cash.

Cause — There is a limited number of employees to perform the financial duties of the City.

Effect — A lack of segregation of duties within certain transaction cycles, including payroll, leaves the
City exposed to the risk of potential misstatement due to either error or fraud.

Recommendation — The City should review ways to segregate the functions and operations of the City
that are controlled by the Director of Finance and Administration and the Assistant Director of Finance.

Management s Response/Corrective Action Plan (Unaudited} — The City will work towards segregating
duties within the Department of Finance and Administration.

Follow-Up — The City continues to have a lack of segregation of duties with the Director of Finance and
Administration and the Assistant Director of Finance having access to the accounting, reporting, and
payroll modules within the City’s computerized accounting software. This finding is repeated in the
current year as Significant Deficiency 2008-1

Finding No. 2007-2

Federal Program —
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers (CFDA No. 14.871), Housing and Urban Development

Condition — One of the 23 tenants tested did not have documentation that a rent reasonableness test had
been completed prior to the tenant receiving housing voucher payments for the selected housing.

Cause —Adequate documentation was not maintained showing the results of the rent reasonableness test.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
(Continued)

Criteria — According to the Code of Federal Regulations 24 C.F.R. 982.158(a), the City “must maintain
complete and accurate accounts and records for the program in accordance with HUD requirements, in a
manner that permits a speedy and effective audit.” 24 C.FR. 982.507(a) states that the City must not
approve a lease until the City has determined that the initial rent to the owneris a reasonable rent.

Effect — The tenant’s rent may have exceeded the reasonable limits as assessed by the Housing Authority
thus making the housing choice not eligible for the Section 8 Housing program.

Questioned Costs — None

Recommendation — Rent reasonableness tests should be performed for all tenants and documentation
should be maintained in the tenants’ files.

Management’s Response/Corrective Action Plan (Unaudited) — Rent reasonableness tests will be
performed and maintained.

Follow-Up — This finding was deemed to be a one-time isolated incident. The City’s internal controls
call for rent reasonableness tests to be completed and documented within the tenants’ files. This finding
will not be repeated for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008.

Finding 2007-3

Federal Program —
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers (CFDA No. 14.871), Housing and Urban Development

Condition — Intemal controls are not in place to track the interest camed on excess Housing Assistance
Payments (HAP) received but not expended.

Cause — The City transfers all federal payments received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development from the special Section 8 account to the City’s general operating account upon the receipt
of the Section 8 funding. The City has not fully expended all of the Section 8 HAP funding received and

the City’s general operating account is interest bearing.

Criteria — Interest earned on federal funding can only be expended to fund expenses related to the
specific federal program. Internal controls should be in place to track interest earmed on federal funding
to ensure that the interest is expended on qualified, allowable expenditures under the federal program’s

requirements.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG, KANSAS

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
(Continued)

Effect — Excess HAP funding received may be expended on non-HAP related expenditures which would
violate the requirements of the program.

Questioned Costs — None

Recommendation — Internal controls should be implemented to track interest earned on excess HAP
payments received but not expended.

Management s Response/Corrective Action Plan (Unaudited) — Interest will be credited to excess funds.
Follow-Up — The City has implemented internal controls to track interest earned on Housing Assistance
Payments (HAP) received but not expended. The City allocates a portion of the interest earnings to the

Section 8 fund to track interest earnings on HAP monies. This finding will not be repeated for the fiscal
year ending December 31, 2008.
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BERBERICH TRAHAN & LG, B A

Certified Public Acvonniants

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor, City Manager and City Commissioners
City of Pittsburg, Kansas:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Pittsburg, Kansas (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, which collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated May 29, 2009. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States.

Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting as a basis
for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, buf
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified a
deficiency in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a conirol deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the
entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal
control. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
Significant Deficiency No. 2008-1 to be a significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting.

RSM McGladrey Network
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected
by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control that might be
significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also
considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe that the significant deficiency described above is not
a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the deterrmination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

The City’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and federal awarding agencies and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

PrberccdFpaban € Co, P A

May 29, 2009
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BERBERICH TRAHAN & {0 RA.

Cartified Pubtlic Accountants

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Mayor, City Manager and City Commissioners
City of Pittsburg, Kansas:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Pittsburg, Kansas (the City) with the types of compliance
requircments described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended
December 31, 2008. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal programs is the
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on the City’s
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2008.

RSM McGladrey Network
An Independently wned Member

-106-



Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective interal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over
compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation
of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or a combination of control
deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer a federal program such that there is
more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal
control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those
specified parties.

Prberccdpakan € o, P A.

May 29, 2009
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